

# A CASE STUDY EXAMINING THE ORGANIZATIONAL CHANGE PROCESS IN A PRIVATE COMPANY



## FARA WAHIZA BINTI AHMAD PUZI

Thesis Submitted to the School of Graduate Studies, Universiti Putra Malaysia, in Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

November 2021

SPE 2022 8

### COPYRIGHT

All material contained within the thesis, including without limitation text, logos, icons, photographs, and all other artwork, is copyright material of Universiti Putra Malaysia unless otherwise stated. Use may be made of any material contained within the thesis for non-commercial purposes from the copyright holder. Commercial use of material may only be made with the express, prior, written permission of Universiti Putra Malaysia.

Copyright © Universiti Putra Malaysia



Abstract of thesis presented to the Senate of Universiti Putra Malaysia in fulfillment of the requirement for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy

### A CASE STUDY EXAMINING THE ORGANIZATIONAL CHANGE PROCESS IN A PRIVATE COMPANY

By

#### FARA WAHIZA BINTI AHMAD PUZI

November 2021

#### Chairman : Professor Amer Hamzah bin Jantan, PhD Faculty : School of Business and Economics

The primary purpose of this study is to investigate the organizational change process in a private company. In the property industry, there is a demand for improvement and developers know they have to step out of their comfort zone, be flexible, and adapt to the homebuyers' ever-changing wants and needs. The company repositioned itself by moving away from the traditional way to the present trends. There is limited research on employees' readiness to accept change in an organization. This study-appraised change from the perspective of the employees and how they understand the change process. This study is a single case study on a construction company. The company's leadership decided to use Lewin's change theory as a guide for the change initiative. This helps address the uncertainty and resistance to change experienced at all staff levels within the company. The primary informants for the study range from executives to senior managers from fourteen (14) departments.

The results from the interviews conducted discover variances and changes in employees' working styles. The results can be grouped under nine different themes. The themes are: Theme One: Need for Change; Theme Two: Resistance to Change; Theme Three: Perception Towards Change and Transformation; Theme Four: Reaction Towards Change; Theme Five: Organizational Culture; Theme Six: Communication; Theme Seven: Leadership Effectiveness; Theme Eight: Participation in Change and Theme Nine: Performance. Informants stressed that good and strong leadership is compulsory to ensure an effective organizational culture. Leadership is also key in handling problematic and challenging team members. There is a positive impact of leadership style on the change process in terms of employee involvement, employee motivation as well as knowledge sharing at the individual and organizational levels. Organizations should take the time for deliberation, reflection, and experimentation in approaching planned change and recognize that all evidence-based principles will require local adaptation and adjustment. The goals of employees and the employer should be in tandem to ensure that the change initiatives are accepted and supported. Abstrak tesis yang dikemukakan kepada Senat Universiti Putra Malaysia sebagai memenuhi keperluan untuk ijazah Doktor Falsafah

### KAJIAN KES YANG MENYELIDIK PROSES PERUBAHAN ORGANISASI DALAM SYARIKAT SWASTA

Oleh

#### FARA WAHIZA BINTI AHMAD PUZI

November 2021

# Pengerusi: Profesor Amer Hamzah bin Jantan, PhDFakulti: Sekolah Perniagaan dan Ekonomi

Tujuan utama kajian ini adalah untuk mengkaji proses perubahan organisasi dalam syarikat swasta. Dalam industri Hartanah, wujud tuntutan terhadap perubahan dan mereka perlu keluar dari zon selesa mereka, bersikap fleksibel dan menyesuaikan diri untuk memahami kehendak dan keperluan pembeli rumah yang sentiasa berubah. Syarikat telah mengubah kedudukannya dengan beralih daripada cara tradisional kepada aliran semasa. Terdapat kajian yang terhad tentang kesediaan pekerja untuk menerima perubahan dalam organisasi. Kajian ini menilai perubahan dari perspektif pekerja dan bagaimana mereka memahami proses perubahan. Kajian ini merupakan kajian kes tunggal ke atas sebuah syarikat pembinaan. Kepimpinan syarikat memutuskan untuk menggunakan teori perubahan Lewin sebagai panduan untuk inisiatif perubahan. Ini membantu menangani ketidakpastian dalam syarikat tersebut. Pemberi maklumat utama untuk kajian terdiri daripada eksekutif kepada pengurus kanan daripada empat belas (14) jabatan.

Hasil daripada temu bual yang dijalankan menemui kelainan dan perubahan dalam gaya kerja pekerja. Dapatan boleh dikumpulkan di bawah sembilan tema yang berbeza. Temanya ialah: Tema Pertama: Keperluan Perubahan; Tema Kedua: Penentangan terhadap Perubahan; Tema Tiga: Persepsi Terhadap Perubahan dan Transformasi; Tema Empat: Reaksi Terhadap Perubahan; Tema Kelima: Budaya Organisasi; Tema Enam: Komunikasi; Tema Tujuh: Keberkesanan Kepimpinan; Tema Lapan: Penyertaan dalam Perubahan. Tema Kesembilan: Prestasi. Informan menegaskan bahawa kepimpinan yang baik dan kuat adalah wajib untuk memastikan dan keberkesanan budaya organisasi. Kepimpinan juga penting dalam menangani ahli pasukan yang bermasalah dan mencabar. Terdapat kesan positif gaya kepimpinan terhadap proses perubahan dalam tempoh penglibatan pekerja, motivasi pekerja serta perkongsian pengetahuan di peringkat individu dan organisasi. Organisasi harus meluangkan masa untuk pertimbangan, refleksi dan eksperimen dalam mendekati

perubahan yang dirancang dan menyedari bahawa semua prinsip berasaskan bukti memerlukan penyesuaian dan penyesuaian tempatan. Matlamat pekerja dan majikan harus seiring untuk memastikan bahawa inisiatif perubahan diterima dan disokong.



### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Alhamdulillah, thank you Allah, for giving me the strength and patience to reach this point.

Firstly, I would like to express my most profound appreciation to my supervisor, Professor Dr. Amer Hamzah Bin Jantan, for his moral support, inspiration, and contributions throughout my journey. I will never forget his time and ideas to make my work productive and inspiring. His valuable suggestions, comments, and guidance encouraged me to learn more day by day. I am also indebted to him for his generosity, selfless support, and especially for the excellent example and patience he gave me for the last six years.

My sincere thanks to my Committee Supervisor, Associate Professor Dr. Serene Ng Siew Imm, and Associate Professor Dr. Azman Hassan for their assistance and guidance throughout my thesis. Special thanks to them for the invaluable insight, motivation, and suggestions in my journey to complete my thesis.

Special thanks to my husband, Mr. Yusaidi Kamarulzaman, for allowing me to continue my studies and supporting me spiritually throughout my life. His understanding and patience have given me the strength to continue my study from 2015 until 2021. To my beloved children, Adiff Najmy, Arynna Hanna, and Adrian Nazmy thank you for giving mama the support to sail through the journey and making me feel loved. However, at times, I could not give my full attention to my commitments to studies and working simultaneously.

Finally, I am thankful to my mother, Ms. Zaiton Mohd Yunus, mother-in-law, fatherin-law, siblings, friends, and acquaintances, who never forget to include me in their prayers for the ultimate success. They have given me all the support, encouragement, and motivation to accomplish my personal goals. This thesis was submitted to the Senate of Universiti Putra Malaysia and has been accepted as fulfilment of the requirement for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy. The members of the Supervisory Committee were as follows:

### Amer Hamzah bin Jantan, PhD

Professor School of Business and Economics Universiti Putra Malaysia (Chairman)

### Serene Ng Siew Imm, PhD

Associate Professor School of Business and Economics Universiti Putra Malaysia (Member)

### Azman bin Hassan, PhD

Associate Professor School of Business and Economics Universiti Putra Malaysia (Member)

### ZALILAH MOHD SHARIFF, PhD

Professor and Dean School of Graduate Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia

Date: 9 June 2022

### **Declaration by graduate student**

I hereby confirm that:

- this thesis is my original work;
- quotations, illustrations and citations have been duly referenced;
- this thesis has not been submitted previously or concurrently for any other degree at any institutions;
- intellectual property from the thesis and copyright of thesis are fully-owned by Universiti Putra Malaysia, as according to the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Research) Rules 2012;
- written permission must be obtained from supervisor and the office of Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research and innovation) before thesis is published (in the form of written, printed or in electronic form) including books, journals, modules, proceedings, popular writings, seminar papers, manuscripts, posters, reports, lecture notes, learning modules or any other materials as stated in the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Research) Rules 2012;
- there is no plagiarism or data falsification/fabrication in the thesis, and scholarly integrity is upheld as according to the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Graduate Studies) Rules 2003 (Revision 2012-2013) and the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Research) Rules 2012. The thesis has undergone plagiarism detection software

Signature:

Date:

Name and Matric No: Fara Wahiza binti Ahmad Puzi

### **Declaration by Members of Supervisory Committee**

This is to confirm that:

- the research conducted and the writing of this thesis was under our supervision;
- supervision responsibilities as stated in the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Graduate Studies) Rules 2003 (Revision 2012-2013) are adhered to.

Signature: Name of Chairman of Supervisory	
Committee:	Professor Dr. Amer Hamzah bin Jantan
Signature:	
Name of Member of Supervisory	
Committee:	Associate Professor Dr. Serene Ng Siew Imm
Signature:	
Name of Member	
of Supervisory	
Committee:	Associate Professor Dr. Azman bin Hassan

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

APPROY DECLAI LIST OF LIST OF LIST O	K WLEDG VAL RATION F TABLE F FIGUR F APPE F ABBRE	S	i iv v vii xiii xiv xv xvi
1	INTR	ODUCTION	1
	1.1	Introduction	1
	1.2	Background of the Study	1
	1.3	Overview of Property Developer Industry in Malaysia	5
	1.4	The Characteristics of the Organization	6
	1.5	The Justification for a Company : Setia Haruman Sdn.	
		Bhd.	7
	1.6	The Scope of the Study	9
	1.7	The Elements or Forces of Change	10
		1.7.1 Technology Innovations	10
		1.7.2 Economic Environment	11
	1.8	1.7.3 Growth Opportunities	12 12
	1.8	Research Problem Literature Gaps	12
	1.9	Research Objectives	20
	1.10		20
	1.11	Significance of the Study	20
	1.12	Motivation for this Study	21
	1.14	Operational Definitions	22
		1.14.1 Organizational Change	22
		1.14.2 Change Management Process	23
	1.15	Thesis Outline	23
	1.16	Chapter Summary	23
2	SETL	A HARUMAN SDN BHD	24
	2.1	Introduction of Setia Haruman Sdn. Bhd	24
		2.1.1 The Company Profile	24
		2.1.2 SHSB is the Master Developer of Cyberjaya	25
		2.1.3 The Role of Master Developer	25
	2.2	Justification for the Choice of the Organization	27
	2.3	Awards and Achievements	27
	2.4	The Organizational Problem in SHSB	28

2.4 The Organizational Problem in SHSB

	2.4.1 Lack of Directions	28
	2.4.2 Communication and Feedback	28
	2.4.3 Ineffective Teams	29
	2.4.4 Lack of Awareness	29
	2.4.5 Culture	29
	2.5 The Chronology of Organization Change in SHSB	30
	2.6 Lewin's Model as a Guideline for Change Initiatives	
	SHSB	31
	2.7 The Change in SHSB	31
	e	32
	2.7.1 SHSB Transformation in HR Project	
	2.7.2 Rebranding	33
	2.7.3 Transformation in Company	35
	2.8 Chapter Summary	35
	LITERATURE REVIEW	36
	3.1 Introduction	36
	3.2 An Overview - Organizational Change	36
	3.3 The Impact of Transformational Changes	38
	3.4 Theoretical Model of Organizational Change	40
	3.5 The Planned Approach to Organizational Change– Ku	art
	Lewin's Model	40
	3.6 The Contingency Model of Change – Kotter's Model	43
	3.7 The Emergence Approach to Organizational Change	; _
	McKinsey Model	45
	3.8 Factors that Influence Employees to Change	47
	3.8.1 Job Satisfaction and Organization	nal
	Commitment	47
	3.8.2 Job Satisfaction and Attitudes Towar	
	Organizational Change	49
	3.8.3 Organizational Commitment and Attitud	
	Toward Organizational Change	50
	3.8.4 Managing Organizational Change: Transpare	
	Internal Communication Practice	51
	3.9 Resistance to Change	54
	3.10 Theoretical Framework	55
	3.10.1 Communication	55
	3.10.2 Organizational Culture	56
	3.10.3 Leadership	57
	3.10.4 Training Development	58
	0 1	
	3.11 Chapter Summary	58
4	RESEARCH METHODOLOGY AND DESIGN	60
	4.1 Introduction	60
	4.2 Qualitative Research Method	60
	4.3 Case Study Research Design	62
	4.4 Case Study Protocol (CSP)	64
	4.4 Case Study Flotocol (CSF) 4.5 Research Philosophy	64
	4.5 Research Philosophy 4.6 The Role of Researcher	65
		05

	4.7	Justification of the Choice of Organization –Setia	
		Haruman Sdn Bhd	66
	4.8	Data Collection Method	67
	4.9	Data Collection Process	67
		4.9.1 Gaining Access to the Organization	68
	4.10	The Process of the Interview	68
		4.10.1 Interview Guide	69
		4.10.2 Conducting the Interviews	70
		4.10.3 Questions for the Employees	70
	4.11	Selection of the Participants	70
	4.12	Qualitative Data Analysis	71
		4.12.1 Thematic Analysis	72
		4.12.2 Coding and Categorization	73
	4.13	Interpretive Case Research	74
	4.14	Assumptions of Interpretive Research	74
	4.15	Company Documents Relating the Change Process	75
		4.15.1 Transcribing the Interviews	75
	4.16	Ethical Considerations	76
		4.16.1 Privacy and Confidentially	76
	4.17	Validity in the Case Study	76
	4.18	Chapter Summary	77
5	RESE	EARCH FINDINGS	78
	5.1	Introduction	78
	5.2	Research Findings	78
	5.3	Research Findings Based on Themes	79
		5.3.1 Theme One: Need of Change	80
		5.3.2 Theme Two: Employees Resistance to Change	83
		5.3.3 Theme Three: Perception Towards Change and	
		Transformation	89
		5.3.4 Theme Four: Reaction Towards Change	92
		5.3.5 Theme Five: Organization Culture	94
		5.3.6 Theme Six: Communication	96
		5.3.7 Theme Seven: Leadership Effectiveness	101
		5.3.8 Theme Eight: Participation in Change	104
		5.3.9 Theme Nine: Performance	109
	5.4	Challenges During the Interviews	112
	5.5	Chapter Summary	112
6	DISC	USSION OF FINDINGS	114
	6.1	Introduction	114
	6.2	Discussion of Findings –Interviews	115
		6.2.1 Employees Understanding on the Need of	
		Organizational Change in SHSB	115
		6.2.2 Employees Understanding Towards the	
		Outcomes of being Resistance to Change in	
		SHSB	116
		6.2.3 Employees Behaviors in Experiencing the	
		Situation in SHSB Towards the Transformation	119

		6.2.4 Employees Experience in the Change Process in	
		a Property Developer Company in Cyberjaya	119
		6.2.5 Factors that Influence Employees to Change	120
		6.2.5.1 Communication Effectiveness	120
		6.2.5.2 Innovation	122
		6.2.5.3 Leadership Effectiveness	124
		6.2.5.4 Human Resources Effectiveness	126
		6.2.5.5 Employees Satisfaction	127
		6.2.5.6 Mentoring and Coaching	128
		6.2.5.7 Contribution and Coordination	129
		6.2.5.8 Participation and Teamwork	129
	6.3	Lewin's Three Steps of Change in Setia Haruman Sdn	
		Bhd	130
		6.3.1 Need of Change	133
		6.3.2 Perception Towards Change	134
		6.3.3 Reaction Towards Change	136
		6.3.4 Organizational Culture: Managing the	
		Environment of Change	137
		6.3.5 Communication	139
		6.3.6 Participation in Change	142
		6.3.7 Performance: The Implementation of the	
		Organizational Change (Training and	
		Development)	144
		6.3.8 Leadership: Sustaining the Change	145
	6.4	Scope and Limitations of the Study	146
	6.5	Chapter Summary	146
7	CON	CLUSION	148
	7.1	Introduction	148
	7.2	Overview of the Study	148
	7.3	Conclusion of the Findings from Research Questions and	1.0
		Research Objectives	149
	7.4	Theoretical and Practical Implications	151
		7.4.1 Theoretical Implications	151
		7.4.2 Managerial Implications	153
		7.4.3 Implications for Practice	155
	7.5	Limitations of the Study	155
	7.6	Recommendations to SHSB	155
	7.7	Recommendation for Future Study and to the Industry	158
	7.8	Conclusion	158
	7.0	Conclusion	157
RFF	ERENC	TES	161
	ENDIC		187
		ES OF STUDENT	187
		JBLICATIONS	197
L131	OF PU	JULICATIONS	190

G

xii

# LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
1	Volume of Transactions Trend for Property Sector	4
2	Summary of Literature Gaps in this Study	17
3	The chronology of the change in SHSB	30
4	Adapted from Lincoln and Guba (2000)	65
5	Respondents Details	71

# LIST OF FIGURES

Figure		Page
1	Lewin's Model of Change	41
2	Kotter's 8 Steps Model of Change	44
3	McKinsey 7S Model of Change	46
4	Proposed Framework	55
5	The case study process research suggested by Yin (2017)	63
6	Lewin's Three Steps of Change	130
7	Change Leadership Continuum	132
8	Sources: 2017 Work and Well-Being Survey by American Psychological Association	136

# LIST OF APPENDICES

Appen	dix	Page
1	Interview Guide (Research Questions - Semi-Structured Interview)	187
2	Consent Letter to Participants	188
3	Letter from Supervisor to Conduct Interview	190
4	Outline of Case Study Protocol	191
5	Sample Interview (Respondent Two)	194

 $\bigcirc$ 

# LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

SHSB	Setia Haruman Sdn. Bhd.		
PWC	PricewaterhouseCoopers		
GDP	Gross Domestic Product		
COAA	Construction Owners Association of America		
ICT	Information and Communications Technology		
HR	Human Resource		
OD	Organizational Development		
CIPD	Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development		
SLT	Strategic Learning		
ED	Executive Director		
EPIC	Excellent, Pride, Integrity, and Care		
KPI	Key Performance Indicator		
RM Ringgit Malaysia			
MSC	Multimedia Super Corridor		
HOD	Head of Department		
SOP	Standard Operating Procedure		
OC	Organizational Chart		
CAB	Change Advisory Board		
UPM	University Putra Malaysia		
IT	Information Technology		
SME	Small Medium Enterprise		
QDA	Qualitative Data Analysis		
PNC	Private and confidential		

- HRIS Human Resources Information System
- SMS Short message service
- SWOT Strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats
- HRM Human Resources Management
- TA Thematic Analysis
- CSP Case Study Protocol



### CHAPTER 1

### INTRODUCTION

### 1.1 Introduction

As the first chapter of this study, also known as the introduction chapter, this chapter serves to lead the reader from a general subject area to a particular field of this research. The introduction establishes the context of the study. It summarizes the background information about the topic, stating the purpose of the work in the form of the hypothesis, question, and the research problem. Other than that, this chapter briefly explains the researcher's rationale, highlighting the potential outcomes this study could reveal and describing the remaining structure of this research paper. With this introduction chapter, the research paper would provide the readers with the researcher's initial impressions about the logic of the argument, which allow readers to understand more about the whole idea of this study.

### **1.2 Background of the Study**

The global economic downturn affects Malaysia's property industry and the international property industry. The increasing market competitiveness eventually makes the Malaysian property industry even more challenging with oversupplying properties, but the sales are slow during an economic downturn. Property development markets are vast and offer limitless opportunities during economic booms and have also played a significant part in Malaysia's economy from then till now. According to Newell and Steglick (2015), the property development business encompasses a diverse array of organizations and individuals engaged in creating and operating real property to satisfy the housing, employment, and social needs of communities. Buildings are a fundamental human necessity for protecting human life and health, and as such, people require them as protective shelter. Some people refer to them as property or real estate (Zainul & Amir, 2019). As is the case in Australia, property development contributes significantly to the country's property sector and economy (Newell & Steglick, 2015). Between the late 1980s and the mid-1990s, these sectors complemented other sectors of the economy by providing a foundation for the generation of production, income, profit, and employment through the construction of fixed assets, all of which are vital ingredients for economic growth.

These sectors, however, are incredibly susceptible to economic conditions, with their prices skyrocketing during boom times and collapsing during recessions. For example, the decline in property values in the early 1990s created difficulties for banking institutions that relied on real estate as collateral. The global property market has been performing well. However, there was a drop during the global economic crisis in 1997 and from 2008 to 2010 (Kepili & Masron, 2016). Since 2011, the global property market has witnessed an increase and downward trend from 2008 to 2010, with a

further decrease between 2014 and 2015, particularly in residential housing properties. However, throughout Europe and Asia, prices remained high (Zull & Masron, 2016). According to the data study, over half of nations saw worse markets in 2018 than in prior years. Unfortunately, China, Sweden, Turkey, and the majority of the Middle East suffered either property price declines or a severe slowing of price increases (Lalaine, 2018). Apart from that, Malta (+12.86 percent), Hong Kong (+11.11 percent), the Netherlands (+8.45 percent), Singapore (+7.93 percent), and Ireland (+7.21 percent) all had robust property markets in the year to Q3 2018. On the other side, Egypt (-20.91 percent), Turkey (-11.27 percent), Dubai, UAE (-8.73 percent), Kyiv, Ukraine (-6.27 percent), and Shanghai, China (-4.49 percent), all using inflation-adjusted numbers (Lalaine, 2018).

Thus, Malaysia was not a weaker country with price declines or slowed down; instead, it was in the middle of the two categories, with stagnant markets, but it remained tough for property development businesses. Malaysia's property market is still steady and has not shown signs of weakness or price declines. However, the stagnating continues until some good internal factors from the new Malaysian government or external ones rise with global markets. In Malaysia's property market, most purchasers do not intend to live in the property; in fact, most investors will purchase multiple units for investment purposes. Generally, people believe that building property is one of the most valuable investment factors because it provides long-term value-added through property price appreciation while providing a short-term return (Zaid, Kiani & Zainon, 2017). It will provide a higher rate of return than the stock market, with less volatility and a more excellent tangible asset value. Finally, in May 2018, Malaysia's government shifted, introducing new policies and incentives to bolster the property market (Xue, 2019). According to the Department of Statistics Malaysia (DOSM), 17,447 firms provided real estate services in 2015, up from 8,277 in 2010, a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 16.1 percent. The value of gross production created by services was RM28.1 billion; between 2010 and 2015, there was a gain of RM9.4 billion, representing an 8.5 percent compound annual growth rate.

Additionally, the value-added for real estate services increased by 8.8 percent annually to RM17.6 billion. According to the Annual Economic Statistics 2018 for the real estate industry (Department of Statistics Malaysia, 2019), real estate services generated RM32.8 billion in gross production in 2015, growing at an annual rate of 8.1 percent. The average annual growth rate of real estate services increased to 7.2 percent in 2017, resulting in value addition of RM20.7 billion. Additionally, the Department of Statistics Malaysia (2019) reported that the number of individuals engaged in real estate services registered in 2017 was 88,191 individuals; with real estate activities involving owned or leased property accounting for the highest number of individuals engaged at 74,885 individuals or 84.9 percent (2015: 83.9 percent).

Even though the Malaysian government has introduced new policies and incentives to strengthen the property market, on the other hand, the new Malaysian government has halted the majority of mega infrastructure projects awarded by the previous government, which will affect the Malaysian construction market (Xue, 2019). The

Bank Negara Malaysia's (BNM) quarterly report 2017 showed the Malaysian property market has become stagnant; supply and demand mismatches in the property market have risen significantly since 2015. The unsold property units are primarily residential properties priced over RM250,000.00 (Su, Stefanie, Muhamad, & Le, 2017). Malaysia had 43,219 unsold residential units valued at RM29.47 billion in the third quarter of last year, with Johor having the highest count with 13,767 unsold units, followed by Selangor (7,233 units) and Kuala Lumpur (5,114 units) (Xue, 2019).

The epidemic of Covid-19, which threatens the whole planet, is impacting Malaysia and the rest of the world. Thus, suspending the property sales galleries and building activities for an extended period throughout the Movement Control Order (MCO). The government imposed the action to contain the spread of the COVID-19 epidemic. According to a senior analyst at RHB Research Institute, property developers will have a modest buffer from unbilled sales in 2020 to offset the MCO's immediate impact. However, those with high gear and poor credit history would be in a dangerous position. In 2020, the National Property Information Centre stated that market activity for property transactions fell 15.8 percent to RM119.08 billion in 2020, compared to RM141.40 billion in 2019. With economic uncertainty created by the Covid-19 epidemic, analysts predict negative market mood to last until the end of 2020 before progressively improving in 2021. The housing industry will face a slowdown due to the Malaysian government's April moratorium, which will last until October 2020. While Bank Negara Malaysia's six-month loan deferral package will aid developers in overcoming some of the obstacles, they will still be responsible for operating expenditures such as wages. Smaller developers with poor performance might jeopardize their business and eventually collapse.

As a result, the developers who find themselves in perilous positions have a poor track record of sales and cash flow. Hamzah, Yazid, & Shamsudin (2020) predict that the anxious and nervous climate post-Covid-19 is likely to have a knock-on effect for months to come. However, it is unlikely to be as severe as those experienced during the Asian Financial Crisis, which saw a 47.6 percent decline in housing value in 1998. However, careful preparation may enable the property developer to thrive in any circumstance.



Table 1: Volume of Transactions Trend for Property Sector

While examining measures to encourage homeownership, the government must consider stimulating market demand while avoiding a sharp raise in house prices. Under the previous Malaysian Prime Minister Tan Sri Muhyiddin Yassin, the Economic Rejuvenation Policy re-introduced the Home Ownership Campaign (HOC). For the purchase of homes priced between RM300,000 and RM2 million, the stamp duty waivers on instruments of transfer and loan agreements for the Sales and Purchase Agreements signed between June 1, 2020, and May 31, 2021.

The transfer exemption covers the first RM1 million of the home purchase price. Additionally, homebuyers receive a minimum 10% discount from property developers. Meanwhile, from June 1, 2020, to December 20, 2021, Malaysian people would be free from paying Real Property Gains Tax (RPGT) on the sale of residential properties, subject to a cap of three properties per individual. The government attracted new housing purchasers, and the real estate sector participants appreciated such a move. Looking at the situations in this sector, property investors have accepted greater risk in exchange for a higher expected return. It indicates that property investors are still willing to invest even during an economic downturn. They have always used debt to purchase an investment property to increase the return on the investor's equity, and property investors have always used debt to buy an investment property to increase the return on the investor's equity (Nick, 2019). As a result, marketing strategy is critical for promoting property items to investors and prospective purchasers by emphasizing their advantages and favorable returns. Property development is a highly competitive and challenging industry in Malaysia; there are hundreds of property developer businesses. Some are bankrupt due to failed projects (Zaid, Kiani & Zainon, 2017).

Demands are evolving, and for many, a home is more than simply a place to sleep; it is an extension of their lifestyle. Developers are well aware that they must stretch their comfort zones, be adaptable, and respond to discriminating homebuyers' ever-changing desires and expectations. Additionally, there would be a stronger emphasis on sustainability and carbon reduction, as climate change has emerged as the defining problem at this point. Additionally, the sector expects the government to step up and play a role in fostering a healthy property market. Numerous policies and regulations must be evaluated and amended to ensure they continue to meet current and future market demands and conditions. The Property Insight in 2019 compiled the latest news on the Malaysian construction industry.

The key stakeholders collaborate to improve the rules and regulations to meet the needs and desires of the people. In terms of the economy, increasing economic activity may increase income levels. According to the observation, as long as property developers can learn from and adapt to their previous mistakes, the sector should manage the problems better and seek out possibilities in the future decade. A study on the performance variations and communications with the key stakeholders could achieve the desired goals and shape the future of Malaysia's property developer sector. Because of the high percentage of change initiative failures (Hornstein, 2015), managers must recognize change management practices and their application within their organization. Disruptive innovation could disrupt the industry's change management process. The world is changing at a breakneck pace, and organizations need to handle change more effectively than ever before. Nonetheless, some of the change management efforts fall short of success.

### 1.3 Overview of Property Developer Industry in Malaysia

Demands are shifting, and today a house is more than just a roof over the head for many and is part of their lifestyles. The developers know they have to step out of their comfort zones, be flexible, and adapt to discerning the homebuyers' ever-changing wants and needs. Furthermore, there would be greater emphasis on sustainability and reducing carbon footprint, as climate change becomes the defining issue. The industry hopes that the government will step up and play its role in facilitating a healthy property market. The need to review policies and amend numerous laws arises to align with current and future market needs and conditions. The news's gathered in the Property Insight in 2019 on the challenge in Malaysia Construction.

The relevant stakeholders should consider that laws and regulations should suit the need and demands of the people. In terms of the economy, fostering more excellent economic activities could translate to greater income levels. From the observation, the property developers can learn and adapt from experience. The industry should handle the challenges better and look for opportunities in the coming decade. The variances in performance are analyzed and highlighted to the relevant stakeholders to develop the future of the property developer industry in Malaysia. The change management in the industry is about to be interrupted by disruptive innovation itself. The world is changing fast, and businesses need to manage change in a better way now than ever before. Still, the industry fails to achieve some of the efforts in change management.

Malaysia has an obligation and responsibility to maintain the wealth that is taking place nowadays for the future. In the mid-global opportunities, the increasing technological challenge should trigger the development of the construction industry in Malaysia. The property developer industry and private sector have assumed an essential role in generating wealth and improving the quality of life through the government's socio-economic policies into social and economic infrastructures and buildings. Furthermore, it creates a multiplier effect on the other industries, including manufacturing, financial services, and professional services. It is no longer sufficient to depend on the knowledge and experience of the past and an excellent plan to keep adequate and competitive in the market to achieve the various objectives in the property development industry as mentioned in Malaysia Construction in the Property Insight team in 2019.

The pandemic of Covid-19 threatens the whole world, not only affecting Malaysia. The government declared the Movement Control Order (MCO) to curb the spread of the COVID-19 outbreak, property sales galleries remained closed, and construction works halted. According to RHB Research Institute senior analyst, in 2020, property developers would have a slight buffer from unbilled sales to cushion the near-term impact of the MCO. However, those with high gear and bad credit records are precarious. Although Bank Negara Malaysia's six-month loan deferment package would assist in encountering some of the challenges; the developers still need to bear operational costs such as salaries. Smaller developers with poor performance would risk their business and wind up closing the business. Therefore, the developers in dreadful situations have poor sales track records and cash flow positions. However, good planning could make the property developer survive in any case.

### 1.4 The Characteristics of the Organization

SHSB deals in developing properties such as retail spaces, office buildings, and apartment suites to meet the market's demand. SHSB has three (3) divisions with fourteen (14) departments. The departments include Finance, Sales and Marketing, Corporate Sales, Legal, Operations, Contract Administration, Infra and Site Maintenance, Planning and Development, Project Implementation, Asset Management, Human Resources and Administration, Business Development, and Strategic Communication. The total number of the staff is one hundred twenty (120), not including the company's subordinates. As a developer company, the emergence of the new companies and the new ideas on doing business impact the reputation of SHSB. The EC takes the initiative to improve and implement the innovation to compete with competitors that offer the best package with a new design to attract consumers to purchase the product.

The rapidity of change in the developer companies is due to globalization. SHSB planned the strategies to deal with the HR policy, customer contact, and corporate identity. Rebranding is the initial stage of the change. The EC shares the ideas with all the shareholders. SHSB repositioned itself by moving away from the traditional way to the present trends. The company considers improvements in updating new HR policies

and the vision and mission of the organization towards innovation to compete with the newcomers and the existing competitors.

The reason for corporate rebranding is to modernize the old-fashioned trends that exist over time. If SHSB does not update or change the situation, the company will have a bleak future. One of the motivations in rebranding is the modern image that could improve the status and reputation of SHSB as a Master Developer. SHSB makes changes in the organization to enhance its business. Moreover, the competitors have new products and suitable packages of price and material. Rebranding improves the unconstructive relations with the brand. As a result, a significant organizational change could affect the course, which the company has to take.

### **1.5** The Justification for a Company : Setia Haruman Sdn. Bhd.

A case study research makes it possible to explain the sense-making steps, interactions with people, decision-making processes, and predicting outcomes, which occur in complex real-life contexts (Woodside & Baxter, 2013). Furthermore, case studies can be most relevant when conducting qualitative research because it enables the researcher to gain a rich understanding and generate answers to the how what, and why questions. Such implication makes a case study even more relevant to this research project (Saunders et al., 2012). An investigation could use a single case or two or more cases, which are, classified as multiple cases (Yin, 2009).

In this study, the researcher chooses a single case and explains the reasons in subsequent paragraphs. Yin (2009) argues that the researcher influences the choice of a case study method to provide explanations and descriptions of the phenomenon. As mentioned earlier, the study's main objective is to understand how and why employees need to understand change and the change process in the property developer company and how employees' participation affects the result of the behavior. The first chapter of the current study mentions the justification for choosing SHSB as the subject of the study. As a Property Developer that has constructed commercial, residential, and enterprise buildings to meet the growing community needs in Cyberjaya for the past 23 years, this company has started its operations in 1997. It has been recognized as the Master Developer of Cyberjaya and will be the I-City in the Klang Valley.

Operating actively in the construction industry for 23 years, the organization have set their vision to be competitive with the other developer companies operating in Cyberjaya. SHSB contributes to developing properties such as retail spaces, office buildings, and apartment suites to meet the market's demand. The researcher selects the company to investigate the change and change development processes in this company. The research uses the rare method of the case study strategy to explore a particular company's change and development processes. Furthermore, a case study focuses on one company as the subject matter. A case study approach illuminates the process, the rationale, and the effect of employees' participation in change and the company's involvement in the change development process. According to Järvensivu and Törnroos (2010), a single case study could produce an extensive level of contextual insights. In contrast, multiple case studies are likely to provide a distorted picture or no picture of the case's underlying dynamics. According to Yin (2003), a single case study is better when the researcher wants to study, for example, a person or a group of people. The researcher chooses SHSB as the subject of the case study. The information obtained from the observation and interview creates a variety of opinions. It reveals the employees' experience of the change and its development. The case study could project a better understanding and an authentic context on the findings rather than quantitative studies that get the answer through the calculation on paper from the survey.

Therefore, the purpose of a case study research is to describe how the employees understand change and how to carry out the change management process extensively. The approach contextually discovers particular outcomes. SHSB has three (3) divisions with fourteen (14) departments. The departments are Finance, Sales and Marketing, Corporate Sales, Legal, Operations, Contract Administration, Infra and Site Maintenance, Planning and Development, Project Implementation, Asset Management, Human Resources and Administration, Business Development, and Strategic Communication. The total number of the staff is one hundred twenty (120), not including the company's subordinates. The size of the organization choosen is a medium-scaled and based on the Small Medium Enterprise (SME) criteria, which refers to the number of employees in the organization. As a developer company, the emergence of the new companies and the new ideas on doing business impact the reputation of SHSB. The EC has taken the initiative to improve and implement the innovation to compete with competitors that offer the best package with a new design to attract consumers to purchase the product.

The rapidity of change in the developer companies is due to globalization. SHSB has planned the strategies to deal with the HR policy, customer contact, and corporate identity. The management shares rebranding with the shareholders at the initial stage of the change. SHSB has repositioned itself by moving away from the traditional way to the present trends. The reason for corporate rebranding is to modernize the trends over time. If SHSB does not update or change the situation, the public considers it oldfashioned. One of the motivations in rebranding is the modern image that could improve the status and reputation of SHSB as a Master Developer. SHSB makes changes in the organization to enhance its business. Moreover, the competitors have new products and suitable of price and material. When the company implements rebranding, it improves the unconstructive relations with the brand. As a result, a significant organizational change could also affect the course, which the company has to take.

According to Yin (2014), a case study strategy helps answer 'how,' 'what,' and 'why' questions. Therefore, it is appropriate to achieve the objective of this study. The researcher chooses the organization due to the primary investigation in the company. It reveals the existence of the phenomenon of change. The case study strategy helps the researcher understand how the change process occurs in the organization and how the

employees react to the implemented organizational changes. The organizations need the changes. The researcher conducts a pre-test of the semi-structured interview as guidance to measure the change process and transformation of the organization.

The primarily case study uses exploratory and explanatory approaches to understand the real-life issues and recommend the answers to the research questions (Yin, 2014). With SHSB's achievement in constructing commercial, residential, and enterprise buildings to meet the demands of the thriving community in Cyberjaya, the size of this organization is appropriate for this research based on the number of employees required for the interview. Apart from that, the administrative procedures do not bound the small and medium scale organizations, which allow the researcher to investigate the phenomenon of change and the development of the process in the organization.

#### 1.6 The Scope of the Study

The scope of this study focuses on Setia Haruman Sdn. Bhd. It is an organization involved in developing properties such as retail spaces, office buildings, and apartment suites to meet the market's demand. This company is changing. The mandate given to the new Executive Chairman (EC) is to start a change initiative in the company. The study's scope is limited to a single subject within a single industry within a single organization, per previous research recommendations (Yousef, 2017) that a study involving private-sector employees regarding their organizational commitment and attitudes toward organizational change be conducted, with the results compared to samples of government employees. The results are generalized, and the other companies can use them to execute change initiatives and simultaneously understand the change process.

Malaysia's property industry has been developed and refocused on new strengths and capabilities. To lay a solid foundation for market into international markets and position the country as a world-class, innovative, and knowledgeable global solution provider, the industry should strive to achieve and establish a secure footprint in the worldwide construction marketplace. Property developers in Malaysia anticipate that as the subsequent decade advances, the country's demographics will shift, with an aging population rising and a more "millennial-centric" market emerging. Simultaneously, the millennial generation would enter the labor field. Successful organizations may sustain their competitiveness throughout times of change, and it does not seem like a singular event but a continuous process required for survival, progress, and perfection. As a result, this study is highly beneficial to property developer companies. It provides several benefits and critical components for resolving issues that frequently arise during the deployment stage. It also serves as a reference for other companies facing similar situations and challenges.

The interview sessions collect the information. The participants in the interviews are the executive officers and the senior managers in the various departments. In addition, the researcher takes into account her observations during the change process in SHSB. The result of the study provides evidence-based understandings of the difficulty of change and change management in SHSB from the employees' perspective.

### **1.7** The Elements or Forces of Change

A wide range of factors constantly change and impact real estate price in local, national, and global organizations. There is a link between real estate economics and market forces. The changing circumstances are beyond control. However, investors and buyers can control and react to the changing circumstances to make the most of their opportunities if the factors seem a little intimidating. Despite the challenges that property investors face, it continues to be a favorable asset type for many. To survive against bigger competitors, small commercial enterprise adapts to change. Larger companies need to adapt rapidly when a more modest, innovative competitor comes into the field. Murthy (2007) states that technology, economy, increasing global competition, and government force drive organizational change.

### 1.7.1 Technology Innovations

Almost every industry adopted technology and changed to survive. Technological innovations impacted real estate over the coming years, including big data and data analytics, whereas artificial intelligence, robotics, and blockchain will influence in the distant future. To maintain a competitive advantage requires The real estate industry supports a needed competitive advantage to have a constant view on innovations within their own business and in similar companies. For instance, 92% of the respondents in KPMG's 2017 PropTech Survey perceive digital and technological change affect their business, only 34% acknowledges having an enterprise-wide digital strategy to seize the opportunities that arise. In KPMG's 2017 technology industry innovation survey, 54% of worldwide respondents recognize that access to alliances and partnerships is crucial for enabling technology innovation.

There are several strategies to consider when investing in corporate innovation: building innovation internally, buying start-ups, or partnering with innovative companies, which helps the real estate industry partner with innovative technology start-ups. According to Worley & Mohrman (2014), currently, technological change has highlighted why change is more frequent in organizations than twenty to thirty years ago. In some organizations, the change that results from the adoption of new technology is standard; although it can be troublesome, the difference can increase productivity and service. The technology has also affected the communication of valuable resources on experts by sharing the information online or on social media sites. Technology is crucial as it can improve the supply chain management in the organization, customer experience, inventory management, and loss prevention (Carr, 2014).

The development of today's communication technology allows organizations to learn more intensively than before. Technology is part of the implemented change to increase productivity and better service. The business world is not static; globalization and advances in technology are only two dimensions, forcing enterprises to change continuously (Corodeanu, 2014). Businesses need communication and connection to function. With the new wave of faster, better, and stronger Internet connections, the movement will be faster, better and create more positive human relationships to optimize communication in the organization.

Technology innovation has also increased data security. As the data enter the regular news cycle, consumers develop a greater awareness to treat their data, and there is greater corporate responsibility regarding data privacy. New security tools are emerging on the corporate and consumer sides, and the latest technologies create security risks awareness. It is crucial to keep up with the latest technologies and stay safe. Organizations should be leveraging these new technologies with the absolute fundamentals in place. By combining new technologies with basic security controls, the organization will be confident that information is safe and out of reach.

The organization needs to be aware of the dynamic internal and external environment, which affects the implemented changes in the extended area. The organization needs to manage the differences effectively to avoid numerous disagreements. Use the new procedures to train the employees when implementing new technology. Sometimes when the managers implement the new processes and systems, the latest technology leads to an increase in the activities in the organization. Furthermore, organizational change needs to evolve continually to be aligned with environmental factors and obtain a competitive advantage (Al-Haddad & Kotnour, 2015). In including these technological..innovations in their strategy to keep pace with their new competitors and maintain their edge, the traditional real estate players need to be agile and flexible.

### 1.7.2 Economic Environment

Generally, the real estate industry is very cyclical, and an individual developer is greatly affected by economic trends and the industry's outlook. The economy is one of the reasons why the organization needs to change. It has positive and negative impacts on the organization. Moreover, business change results are related to internal and external drivers. Inner drivers include innovative leadership, survival instinct, and financial goals. External drivers derive from social movements, technological evolutions, economic reality, and customer demand. External drivers influence changing the law in the workplace and affect labor relations in several companies, whereas; internal drivers can impact the organization's profitability. It also requires management to assess the effects of technological changes (Panaite, 2011).

Whether creative or reactive, change is inevitable to sustain the organization. According to Jitpaibon & Sharma (2011), competitiveness influences the ability of multiple organizations to synchronize and participate in their supply chain business activities and processes. Most of the companies consider expansion would involve the addition of stalls and new facilities. Economic factors require companies to change in many cases. Change is needed if current business activities, products, and services do not produce the revenue necessary to sustain profit. Often, companies that change early have a better chance of developing new revenue streams. Financial issues, such as high costs of replacing or buying new equipment, can be operated on specific terms in the business expenses; this can delay the process of change.

The other element to force the difference is personal problems with the company. From the economic implication, change basically may affect the payment or other rewards for the employees. A weak economy can create difficulties, as companies need to make difficult decisions that affect the employees, including salaries and benefits, and even threaten their jobs. Managing both ends of the spectrum is critical for organizations to maintain a strong brand and relationship with customers and employees. The housing and property industry addresses three key challenges; sustainability, innovation, and technology, in the recovery of the sector and the economy in the post-pandemic era. Tan Sri Michael Yeoh mentioned the facts in his welcome remarks at the 2021 Malaysian Housing and Property Summit.

### 1.7.3 Growth Opportunities

Organizations that apply change allow the employees to learn new skills, explore new opportunities in career development, and encourage creativity in various ways that ultimately benefit the organization in getting new ideas and increasing productivity. In SHSB, the change in the organization allows the employees to prepare themselves to be involved in training to acquire new skills and understand the policies introduced during the transition. The organization needs to evaluate the employees, capabilities and fill the gaps by understanding the current abilities and skills for the organization's growth. The present study discovered that experience in organizational change and accepting the move can be defined and generally learned by the other academics related to organizational change.

The employees could adapt to the change process because the organization provides the best training. Most authors have different opinions and ways to classify change. According to Cummings & Worley (2015), the theories involve entering and contracting, diagnosing, action planning, intervention, and evaluation. The importance of change management is to provide conceptual scaffolding to the people, the process, and the organization before implementing the change. It is used as a benchmark to support and understand the different effects on the organization and people.

### 1.8 Research Problem

The construction industries have obligations and responsibilities to preserve the riches created today for the future. Malaysia must perform competently to compete in the mid-global possibilities, and the rising technical challenge should spur growth. The property developer industry and private sector have played a critical role in producing wealth and enhancing people's quality of life by investing in social and economic infrastructures and buildings due to the government's socio-economic policies. Additionally, it has a multiplier effect on other sectors, such as manufacturing, financial services, and professional services. With the numerous objectives of the property development industry, it is no longer adequate to rely on prior knowledge and expertise and a sound market plan to remain viable and competitive. This news was gathered in 2019 by the Property Insight team on the Malaysian construction challenge.

The global economic downturn affects Malaysia's property industry and the world property industry. However, the Malaysian property industry became increasingly competitive during the downturn, eventually becoming even more challenging due to a market of properties as more and more building is completed in the markets. However, sales are slow during the economic downturn. Thus, an effective marketing strategy is a critical component of all businesses, generally recognized and accepted. An effective marketing strategy has a significant beneficial impact on all organizations. Global property markets declined, particularly in residential housing buildings, although property values continued to rise rapidly in Europe and Asia.

However, according to statistics, more than half of nations' markets were weaker in 2018 than in prior years. Unfortunately, China, Sweden, Turkey, and the majority of the Middle East saw either property price declines or a severe slowing of price increases (Lalaine, 2018). The development of new economies has heralded the arrival of several commercial possibilities for both private and governmental entities. The nature of the real estate industry is cyclical, and economic trends and industry prospects significantly influence each developer. The economy is one factor for the organization's need for change. Change management is the process of continuously updating the organization's direction, structure, and abilities to satisfy external and internal demands (Hughes, 2011).

Change is an inescapable fact of life, whether internally or due to market or industry change. Effective change building is not only crucial for survival but also for establishing and sustaining a competitive edge. Change may also imply a change in the organization's structures, plans, policies, processes, technology, or culture. Empowerment is critical to ensuring that everyone participating in the planning and change management processes can perform their assigned duties (Hughes, 2011). It enables workers to comprehend and commit to the change and perform successfully due to the organizational change. It has a mixed effect on the organization. The industry executives prepare for organizational change. They first define the change, comprehend its rationale critically, and acquire support from related literature. Organizational change is required for businesses to thrive and develop.

According to the literature, prior researchers discovered that organizational change is a well-documented aspect of modern life that has been clearly characterized and thoroughly investigated by various change and change management theorists. Change management is critical to the effectiveness of change acceptance and utilization within the organization. A small business firm must adapt to change to compete with larger rivals. When a more modest, inventive competitor enters the industry, larger firms must react quickly. According to Murthy (2007), the economy, rising global competitiveness, and government coercion fuel organizational change. Furthermore, the effect on company change is dependent on both internal and external forces. Internal motivators include creative leadership, a survival instinct, and financial objectives. External factors include social movements, technical advancements, economic realities, and consumer desire. External factors have an impact on altering workplace laws and on labor relations in a variety of firms. Internal drivers, on the other hand, affect the organization's profitability.

Additionally, management must be aware of the impacts of technology advancements (Panaite, 2011). Planning the change occurs years in advance or is imposed on an organization due to an environmental upheaval. Since organizational change affects the employees, the executive should seek their views on their personal life and the nature of their job, either directly or indirectly. It affects them through changes in employment circumstances, benefits, and future ambitions. It might be radical in and fundamentally alter the organization's operations, or in nature and gradually modify the typical way.

In each instance, regardless of the form, change entails letting go of old ways of doing things and adapting to a new way. Thus, it is a process that involves the successful management of the organization's employees. The executive first develops a plan that clearly articulates and quantifies progress and describes how the change impacts the organization, and its workers, customers, stakeholders, and communities will be affected. The change process should be linked with corporate objectives and describe the organization's implementation and sustainability. It is necessary to identify the potential obstacles and adapt them to meet the goals. McClellan (2011) argues that change fails because those in charge frequently repress the development of opposing organizational meanings rather than viewing them as a way for participants to create new organizing discourses. Effective organizational changes boost employee happiness and performance, productivity, engagement, and other critical employee indicators.

The study aims to explore the understanding of change and change development process that contributes to the behavior of the employees, specifically at Setia Haruman's company. Founded in the 2000s and being one of the traditional property developer firms in Malaysia, the company was one of the leading property market players in the building industry in Malaysia. Following its massive success as a progressive building contractor in Klang Valley, it has expanded its business into property development projects. However, the company remained in the traditional sales method for the past 22 years. It does not focus on marketing strategies and branding or a vision and mission. Due to this matter, the company faced a slow and steady sale

value, which failed to meet the shareholders' expectations. According to the annual report, the company had unstable revenue from 2005 to 2019, and shareholders must do something to limit the losses; otherwise, the company cannot survive and retrench the staff. The HR representative disclosed the information in the interview session. The Master Developer title can be transferred to another Property Developer if the existing company cannot perform based on the achievement and development awarded and can ruin the company's reputation.

### 1.9 Literature Gaps

Despite the various researches on change management, there is still a gap in the literature on change management and change implementation (Jo-Li et al., 2021; Yousef, 2017; Hussain et al., 2018; Al-Ali et al., 2017). The implication of not having a good communication strategy has always been one of the reasons for the failure of change initiatives. As emphasized in Jo Li et al. (2021) research, transparent internal communication could encourage employees to cope with organizational change proactively, assist them in reducing change-related uncertainty, and ultimately cultivate quality while facing changes. However, the study did not focus on a single industry or a company. The study selects all full-time employees with different job positions at small, medium, and large organizations.

Yousef (2017) investigates the relationships between job satisfaction, organizational commitment, and attitudes toward organizational change in a non-Western multicultural setting. He discovered that certain facets of job satisfaction have direct and indirect effects on various dimensions of attitudes toward organizational change. Yousef (2017) explained that organizational commitment mediates between multiple aspects of job satisfaction and different attitudes toward organizational change. However, the study used the non-government departments' (private sector employees) to generalize the findings. It also gave attention to the corporate culture to reduce resistance. Observing whether the present organizational culture fits into the change objectives is necessary. Before starting the change process, they considered the factors. Failure to create good communication and lack of knowledge on the employee's needs caused difficulty implementing organizational change.

According to Beatty (2015), communication is vital in successful change initiatives. The research findings show a very high correlation between change success and communications efforts (Pearson correlation r=0.567, significant at the 0.01 level). In contrast, ineffective internal communication is a substantial contributor to the failure of change initiatives. In her research, Beatty (2015) also emphasizes that the change leaders must have a coherent communication strategy, use appropriate communication vehicles (and not rely on email), ensure middle managers support the change, and persist in communication efforts right to the end the initiative.

Based on previous literature, between 2016 and 2020, various researches detected and explored the significant reasons for organizational change failure (Graamans, Aij,

Vonk, & Have (2020); Bruskin, (2019); Dobrovič & Loumová, Veronika, 2017). The factors contributing to the failure of organizational change are insufficient education and training, employees' indifference, inadequate management support, poor leadership, unsuitable corporate culture, inadequate resources, poor communication, improper planning, soft focus on the customer, and lack of monitoring and measurement system. A study done by Rafferty & Griffin (2006) shows that the aspects of change that are salient to individuals and that influence employee attitudes with three distinct characteristics include the frequency, impact, and planning of change. Lazarus & Folkman (1984) use the Cognitive Phenomenological Model of Stress and Coping to propose how these change characteristics influence individuals' appraisal of the uncertainty associated with change, job satisfaction, and turnover intentions. The findings show a repeated cross-sectional study on collected individuals' perceptions of change indicate change perceptions are moderate to strongly intercorrelate.

The research took the measurements one month before employee attitudes in consecutive years suggested that the change perceptions displayed differential relationships with outcomes. Previous research showed that the success of any change depends on the organization's employees because they are at the grassroots level. They were responsible for executing the change, formulated by the higher authority (Shah et al., 2016). Based on the available literature review, organizations are going through restructuring, downsizing, spinoffs, equity carve-out, and other similar changes, which the employees have to utilize, adapt and experience in the new situations. Therefore, the executive should carefully design the change path from the pre-change to the post-change and consider the employees' perceptions. Consequently, more studies are needed to emphasize the factors influencing employees to change.

This changed path should start with assessing employees' commitment to the change at the very outset and identifying possible barriers to change. The assessment should focus on the factors that determine the responsibility to change, including transformational leadership, vertical and horizontal communication, employees' adherence to the pre-change and post-change culture, the systems that structure the employees' workflows, and employee satisfaction. The Australian government conducted one of the previous renowned studies to investigate change and change management in one of the agencies dealing with construction works. Most of the papers discuss the various issues and challenges in the construction industry and provide suggestions for alleviating these issues that could give drawbacks to the company, customers, stakeholders, top management team, or employees.

The construction industry displays a significant role in aggregating the country's economy. It contributes to profits, capital formation, and employment creation, which ultimately support the gross domestic product (GDP) and the socio-economic development of Malaysia. Muhammad Najib Razali & Yasmin Mohd Adnan (2015) focus on assessing sustainability practices among listed property companies in Malaysia. The study indicates Malaysia is lagging behind the significant markets of Singapore, Australia, the UK, and the USA. Malaysia only introduced sustainability for

the property market to the mainstream market in the last two years. The research findings categorized the sustainable property development concept among listed property companies as low level; even there was an increase in this development.

They carried out the study due to the developing existence of construction companies worldwide and Malaysia. The construction industry is an important sector to portray the status of the national economy. It involves getting a piece of land, developing it, and renovating buildings, structures, and other real estate property. Australian Bureau of Statistic (2010) defines the construction industry as businesses that have high engagement with constructions of residential and non-residential buildings, engineering structures and, related commerce services. In Malaysia, change management is a trending topic in most organizations and construction companies. According to the Malaysian Construction Research Journal (2018), the most popular selected papers from the conferences organized in Malaysia are related to material and building technology, construction project management, supply chain management, building environment, and green technology.

The literature gaps are summarized in Table 2 as a guideline for the researcher to conduct this study.

Author	Tittle	Year	Points	Research Gap
1.     Li, Jo Yun       2.     Sun, Ruoyu       3.     Tao, Weiting       4.     Yuenjae, Lee	Employee coping with organizational change in the face of a pandemic: The role of transparent internal communication	2021	<ul> <li>Many businesses and organizations have to implement changes to manage operational and economic changes due to the Covid-19 pandemic.</li> <li>Understanding how employees manage the changes during the process is critical to the success of the organization</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>This study only tested the conceptual model in the Covid-19 outbreak where the participants of the organizations may have different policies and change procedures.</li> <li>Implement cross-sectional survey data collected at the early stage of the Covid-19 outbreak and change the organizational response and individual employees'</li> </ul>

### Table 2: Summary of Literature Gaps in this Study

# Table 2: Continued

				cognitive and behavioral responses. Longitudes designed to understand the effectiveness of transparent communication across the phases of organizational change not included
1. Youse D. A	f, Organizational Commitment, Job Satisfaction and Attitudes toward Organizational Change: A Study in the Local Government	2017	<ul> <li>The focus is on the direct and indirect relationships among job satisfaction, organizational commitment, and attitudes toward organizational change and</li> <li>their dimensions in the local government context in a non-Western multicultural setting.</li> </ul>	The sample of this study was confined to local Government department employees and excluded non- government departments' employees.
1. Beatty, A.	C. Communicating during an organizational change.	2015	<ul> <li>Communication is a vital ingredient in successful change initiatives.</li> <li>Ineffective internal communication is a significant contributor to the failure of change initiatives.</li> <li>The change leaders must have a coherent communication strategy, use</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>No theories applied in this study</li> <li>Backup Communication plan to respond the negative findings.</li> </ul>
## **Table 2: Continued**

	Tabl	le 2: Continu	ed					
					appropriate communication vehicles, ensure middle managers support the change, and persist in communication efforts right to the end of the initiative.			
	1. 2.	Alannah E. Rafferty Mark A. Griffin	Perceptions of Organizational Change: A Stress and Coping Perspective	2006	<ul> <li>The aspects of change that are salient to individuals influence employee attitudes.</li> <li>Three distinct change characteristics: frequency, impact, and change plannin</li> </ul>	•	It focuses on processes at the individual level of analysis. It will be essential to obtain measures of change events at the group and organization levels that are independent of respondent perceptions.	
	1. 2.	Muhamma d Najib Razali Yasmin Mohd Adnan	Sustainable property development by Malaysian property companies	2015	<ul> <li>It focuses on assessing sustainability practices among listed property companies in Malaysia.</li> <li>Malaysia is lagging behind the significant markets of Singapore, Australia, the UK, and the USA. It introduces sustainability for the property market only to the mainstream market in the last</li> </ul>		The study does not include employees' behavior. Not emphasizing several sustainability issues such as corporate responsibility, sustainable performance assessment, and financial performance from implementing the sustainability concept.	
0	1. 2.	Wasim Abbas Imran Ashgar	The role of leadership in organizational change – Relating the successful Organizational	2010	two years. • This research focuses on the role of leadership in the phenomena of organizational		The article, literature, and case studies produce the model that needs to be tested and	

# Table 2: Continued

companies for		change to visionary and innovative leadership	change and innovation. • 70% of organizational changes fail to get their goals.	<ul> <li>further developed in the future.</li> <li>The interview only involved two representatives from selected companies for</li> </ul>
---------------	--	--	--	---

# 1.10 Research Objectives

Generally, the objective of this study is to examine the employees' understanding of the change and change management process in SHSB. The specific objectives of this study are:

- 1. To identify the employees' understanding of the need for organizational change in SHSB.
- 2. To examine the employees' understanding of the outcomes of being resistant to change in SHSB.
- 3. To study employees and their behavior in experiencing the situation in SHSB towards the transformation.
- 4. To analyze employees' experience in the change process in a property developer company in Cyberjaya.
- 5. To investigate the factors that influence employees to change.

## 1.11 Research Questions

The main research question concentrates on understanding the change and change management process from the employees' perspective. The questions below guide the researcher in this study:

- 1. Do the employees understand the need for organizational change in SHSB, and what do they understand?
- 2. Do the employees understand the outcomes of resistance to change and how they experience the situation in SHSB?
- 3. What are the employee's behaviors in experiencing the situation in SHSB towards the transformations?
- 4. What are the employee's experiences in the change process?
- 5. What influential factors influence the employees to change in SHSB?

### 1.12 Significance of the Study

This study involves examining employees' acceptance level towards transformation and their experience throughout the process would be beneficial to all the sectors, mainly the property development sector. It provides a better understanding of developing organizational change in property development. In the past, the industry was not explored much by researchers. Findings from this study identify the employee's perspective towards transformation and the experience they face throughout the process. It enables any related companies to plan their implementation of the changes by considering the possible responses they will be meeting during the performance of the process.

In addition, this study also investigates the factors, which influence employees to change. It will provide information about the best solutions to manage employee resistance in property development companies. Thus, management can avoid any.company problems, reduce employees' turnover rate, and deflate employees' absenteeism. Nonetheless, the study also provides the best insight into the approaches or techniques to be practiced by property developer management on managing the resistance among their employees.

It provides methods to be employed and approaches to managing change resistance in their companies. Based on the fact that there are limited studies on change management in property developer organizations, the researcher decided to venture into the topic. Moreover, there is a need to explore the moderating effects and relationships of attitude to change and the intention. The studies on change management are n conducted in Western countries; thus, the current study attempts to contribute to an expanding stream by adding Malaysia into the list of references. It is crucial to extend the scope of change research outside Western countries to bridge the literature gap substantially.

With the increase of business competition, changing purchase demands, and advancement of technology used in the property development industry, the issues of change management and the success of change may reveal specific findings that will enrich the current limited understanding of the change management process. Further study on the change process in a property development organization could also develop a more theoretical framework for future reference. The study adds information to the body of literature in spreading the research on change and change management. In addition, the study could also enhance the knowledge of individuals involved in the change process, the relationship between change management initiatives and success, particularly in terms of resistance to change.

To improve understanding of the theoretical and methodological perspectives of change, a better view of personal practice, demographic changes, economic conditions, technology growth, law and regulations, workforce diversity, cultural diversification, and the infrastructural system should be explored. All these factors tend to play significant roles in moulding the business strategy of most property developer organizations, which endlessly compete with one another to recruit new employees who are committed and have the high spirit to attain better productivity performance. More importantly, the findings of this study could be helpful in the development and betterment of the industry as a whole, whereby the organizations utilize the employees in formulating organizational change and change process management initiatives effectively and successfully. The study provides proper motivation and becomes an essential reference source for practitioners and intellectual discussions in conferences, seminars, or forums. This study becomes a starting point for future in-depth change management research in property developer companies.

## 1.13 Motivation for this Study

The researcher considers the study on the property developer organization in Cyberjaya, Selangor, due to several issues relating to understanding change and organizational change management processes related to the property development industry. Occasionally, most organizations are not in favor of the organizational change. Instead, they prefer to seek other alternatives such as saving, acquisition and mergers, rearrangement, or introducing new products (Cawsey et al., 2015). They are unaware that the change process could maximize the innovations or adapt to a new direction, and the management is the critical factor driving the change itself.

Today, change has become part of the transformation process in the organization to ensure it remains competitive in the current market. In this context, the study makes specific references to the employees in the organization. The executive allows the employees to express their views on change and change management processes. The employees have direct experiences that impact their work environment in the organization. This study sought to investigate the collective group of employees into the debate on change and to understand the change management process of the property developer organization.

The data collection process is based on the workers' perspectives and understanding the methods and practices deployed by the organization through interviews. The chapter provides an introduction to the research. It gives the background of the study, followed by the elements or forces that influence the change. The section continues with the presentation of the problem statement, followed by research questions and the general objective.

### 1.14 **Operational Definitions**

### 1.14.1 Organizational Change

Organizational change and organizational strategy are inseparable, or vice versa (Rieley & Clarkson, 2001). Organizational change takes place over time to increase the

probability of success. It is essential to plan for change, set a clear timeframe, and address the critical factors that affect change success (Chrusciel & Field, 2006; Kenny, 2006). In this study, organizational change refers to the actions in which an organization alters a significant component of its organization, such as its culture, the underlying technologies or infrastructure it uses to operate, or its internal processes.

#### 1.14.2 Change Management Process

As a subset of OD, change management is "the process of continually renewing an organization's direction, structure, and capabilities. It serves the ever-changing needs of external and internal customers" (Moran & Brightman, 2001). According to Burnes (2004), change is an ever-present feature of organizational life, both at operational and strategic levels. In this study, corporate change management refers to the method of leveraging change to bring about a successful resolution, and it typically includes three major phases, which includes preparation, implementation, and follow-through.

### 1.15 Thesis Outline

The thesis consists of six chapters. Chapter One discusses the positioning of the investigation of the present study. Chapter Two presents the literature review, which explores the fundamental concepts in understanding the change and the development of organizational change management. It also examines specific theories and approaches related to the research and the information on the company that been study. Chapter Three presents the methodology of the case study. The chapter identifies the method of data collection and justifies the choice made. It also discusses the validity and ethical consideration in the case study of this nature. Chapter Four presents the discussions on the findings of the case study. Chapter Five explains the summit of the results, and finally, Chapter Six presents the conclusion of the findings for future research.

#### 1.16 Chapter Summary

The study is to understand the acceptance in handling the change and change development in the organization. According to Donahue & Tuohy (2006), organizational change is a challenging process that affects the daily life of corporate members. The difficulty is in ensuring its success. The higher authority in the organization must be aware of the effects of change and should be concerned with the employee's acceptance or resistance. Once the management decides to change, it is essential to determine the requirements of the change for that particular organization. According to Yu (2009), the change would affect the performance and goals of the organization. The change processes should include the top management, which makes the decision, and the entire staff in the organization. The study would develop the findings, discussion, and conclusion in Chapter Four, Chapter Five, Chapter Six and Chapter Seven. In the following chapter, the literature review will explore the theories related to change and change management.

#### REFERENCES

- Abbas, W. & Asgar, I. (2010). The role of leadership in organizational change: Relating the successful organizational change to visionary and innovative leadership. University of Gavle. Academy of Information and Management Sciences Journal. p. 53
- Association of Change Management Professionals (ACMP) (2014). Standard for change management. Winter Springs, FL: ACMP.
- Adenle, C. (2011). Reasons why employees resist Change in the workplace. Retrieved from http://catherinescareercorner.com
- Adeniji, A. A. & Osibanjo, A. O. (2013). Human Resource Management: Theory & Practice, Lagos. Pumark Nigeria Limited. 8(2):139-154
- Al-Ali, A. A., Singh, S. K., Al-Nahyan, M., & Sohal, A. S. (2017). Change management through leadership: the mediating role of organizational culture. International Journal of Organizational Analysis, 25(4), 723-739. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOA-01-2017-1117
- Al-Barrow, H.A., Ardakani, M.S., Harooni, A. & Moghaddampour, H. (2013). The relationship between organizational trust and organizational justice components and their role in job involvement in education. IJOMA International Journal of Management Academy, Vol. 1, No. 1, pp.25–41.
- Al-Haddad, S. & Kotnour, T. (2015). Integrating the organizational change literature: a model for successful change. Journal of Organizational Change Management, Vol. 28 No. 2, pp. 234-262. https://doi.org/10.1108/JOCM-11-2013-0215
- Alas, R., Demirer, H., & Bilgin, N. (2013). Values as predictors of attitudes toward changes and organizational learning in Turkish organizations. International Journal of Trade, Economics and Finance, 4(5), 1–5. https://doi.org/10.7763/IJTEF.2013.V4.300
- Alawamleh, H. S. (2013). Impact of Organizational Structure on Knowledge Management in the Jordanian Insurance Companies: From the Perspective of the Supervisory Leadership International Journal of Business and Social Science, 4(11), 83.
- Aldridge, D. (2018). Religion Education's double hermeneutic. British Journal of Religion Education. 40(3), 245–256.
- Aldeman, W. (2011). Coaching in the workplace. Retrieved from the Online Self Improvement. Encyclopedia. http://www.selfgrowth.com/print/1622831

- Allen, N. J., & Meyer, J. P. (1990). The measurement and antecedents of affective, continuance and normative commitment to the organization. Journal of Occupational Psychology, 63, 1–18. doi:10.1111/joop.1990.63.issue-1
- Allen, J., Jimmieson, N. L., Bordia, P., & Irmer, B. E. (2007). Uncertainty during organizational change. Managing perceptions through communication. Journal of Change Management, Vol. 7 No. 2, pp. 187-210. doi:10.1080/14697010701563379
- Anderson, C. (2010). Presenting and evaluating qualitative research. American journal of pharmaceutical education. 74(8).
- Ann Gilley, Jerry W. Gilley & Heather S. McMillan (2009). Organizational Change: Motivation, Communication, and Leadership Effectiveness. International Society for Performance Improvement. Journal of Leadership & Organizational Studies 16(1):38-47
- Akanbi, P. A., & Itiola, K. A. (2013). Exploring the relationship between job satisfaction and organizational commitment among health workers in Ekiti State, Nigeria. Journal of Business and Management Sciences, 1(2), 18-22
- Akinbode, A.I. & Al Shuhumi, S.R.A. (2018). Change Management Process and Leadership Styles. PEOPLE: International Journal of Social Sciences. 4, 609-618. https://doi.org/10.20319/pijss.2018.42.609618
- Appelbaum, S.H., Habashy, S., Malo, J. & Shafiq, H. (2012). Back to the future: revisiting Kotter's 1996 change model. Journal of Management Development. Vol. 31 No. 8, pp. 764 782. https://doi.org/10.1108/02621711211253231
- Apostolou, A. (2000). Employee involvement: Dissemination of Innovation and knowledge management techniques. Technical University of Crete. Retrieved from: www.urenio.or/tools/employeeinvolment
- Australian Economic Indicators (2010). A Statistical Overview of The Construction Industry. Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS).
- Armstrong, M. (2009). Armstrong's Handbook of Human Resource Management Practice. 11th Edition. United Kingdom: Kogan Page Ltd
- Atkinson, P., & Mackenzie, R. (2015). Without leadership there is no change. Management services. 59(2), 42-47
- Awuor, E., & Kamau, E. (2015). Analysis of the role of leadership styles in managing change in organizations: A case study of Kenya tea development agency (KTDA). Journal of Resources Development and Management, 10, 1-15.
- Aydogdu, Sinem & Aşıkgil, Barış. (2011). An Empirical Study of the Relationship Among Job Satisfaction, Organizational Commitment and Turnover Intention. International Review of Management and Marketing. 1. 43-53.

- Azni N. (2015). Hubungan Antara Kepimpinan Instruksional Pemimpin sekolah dengan Komitmen untuk Perubahan Guru sebagai Mediator dalam Melaksanakan Pentaksiran Berasaskan Sekolah. Unpublished PhD thesis. Universiti Putra Malaysia.
- Azzam, A. M. (2014). Motivation to learn: A Conversation with Daniel Pink. Motivation Matters Educational Leadership, v72 n1 p12-17
- Bacal & Associates. (2007). The most common reason strategic planning fails. Online article, retrieved from http://www.work911.com/
- Bacal & Associates (2007). How to Manage Performance. McGraw Hill (Book)
- Barber, M., K. Donnelly & S. Rizvi. (2013). An avalanche is coming: Higher education and the revolution ahead. Paper published by the Institute for Public Policy Research. London, UK.
- Barnham, C. (2015). Quantitative and qualitative research- International Journal of Market Research. International Journal of Market Research 57(6):837-854
- Bass, B. L. (2019). What is Leadership. In M. R. Kibbe & H. Chen (Eds). Leadership Surgery (pp. 1-10). Switzerland: Springer.
- Bartunek, J. M., Woodman, R. W. (2015). Beyond Lewin: Toward a temporal approximation of organization development and change. Annual review of organizational psychology and organizational behavior (Vol. 2, pp. 157-182). Palo Alto, CA: Annual Reviews.
- Bateh, J., Castaneda, M. E., & Farah, J. E. (2013). Employee resistance to organizational change. International Journal of Management & Information Systems (IJMIS), Vol.17 (2), pp
- Beatty, C.A.(n.d.).(2015). Communicating During an Organizational Change. Industrial Relations Centre (IRC). Queen University. Unpublished interviews with Harold Kenny.
- Bellou, V. (2007). Achieving long-term customer satisfaction through organizational culture: Evidence from the health care sector. Managing Service Quality. 17(5), 510-22.
- Bhatt, Ranna. (2020). Theoretical Perspective of Change Management. International Journal of Research in Commerce & Management. Volume No.8, Issue No.2.
- Blackman, Deborah & Kennedy, Monica. (2011). Sometimes, to change the people, you've got to change the people.:When learning is not enough. International Journal of Learning and Change. 5. 208-226. 10.1504/IJLC.2011.045069.
- Burnes (2019). The Origins of Lewin's Three-Step Model of Change. The Journal of Applied Behavioral Science. 56(1):002188631989268

- Burnes (2004). Kurt Lewin and the Planned Approach to Change: A Re- appraisal. Manchester School of Management. Vol. 41. No.6. pp.977-1002
- Bradutanu, D., (2012). Do really employees resist change? Case study at a Credit institution Challenges of the Knowledge Society. Economics. Vol. 2, no. -pp. 1263 1268
- Brédart, A., Marrel, A., Abetz-Webb, L., Lasch, K. & Acquadro, C. (2014). Interviewing to develop patient-reported outcome (PRO) measures For clinical research: eliciting patients' experience. Health and Quality of Life Outcomes, Vol. 12 No. 1, pp. 1-10
- Brauns, Melody. (2015). The management of change in a changing environment To change or not to change?. Corporate Board: role, duties and composition. 11. 37-42. 10.22495/cbv11i3art4.
- Braun V, Clarke V. (2006). Using thematic analysis in psychology. Qual Res Psychol. 3(2):77–101.
- Bruskin, S., (2019). The New Story of Changing: Exploring Dichotomies in the Field of Organizational Change. Department of Organization. Copenhagen Business School. p 7-16
- Burnes, B. (2004). Kurt Lewin and complexity theories: Back to the future? Journal of Change Management. Volume 4, Issue 4
- Caldwell, Raymond. (2003). Change leaders and change managers: Different Or complementary? Leadership & Organization Development Journal. 24. 285-293. 10.1108/01437730310485806.
- Callahan, J. L. (2014). Writing literature reviews: A reprise and update. Human Resource Development Review, 13(3), 271-275.
- Carnall, C. A. (1986). Toward a theory for the evaluation of organizational change. Human Relations, 39, 745–766. Doi: 10.1177/001872678603900803
- Carr, Adrian. (2001). Understanding emotion and emotionality in a process of change. Journal of Organizational Change Management – Organizational Change Management. 14. 421-436. 10.1108/EUM000000005873.
- Carr, A. S. (2014). An examination of technology and organization's change in service delivery to meet customer expectations. Journal of Applied Business Research (JABR). 30. 725. 10.19030/jabr.v30i3.8557.
- Cawsey, T. F., Deszca, G. & Ingols, C. (2012). Organizational change: An actionoriented toolkit. (2nd ed). Thousand Oaks: Sage Publications.

- Cawsey, T.F., Deszca, G., & Ingols, C., (2015). Organizational change: an actionoriented toolkit (3rd edition). Thousand Oaks: SAGE Publications, Inc. Chartered Institute of Personnel & Development (CIPD) (2014). Change management. Factsheet
- Chih, Wen-Hai & Yang, Feng-Hua & Chang, Chih-Kai. (2012). The Study of the Antecedents and Outcomes of Attitude Toward Organizational Change. Public Personnel Management. 41. 597-617. 10.1177/009102601204100402.
- Chrusciel, D. & Field, D.W. (2006). Success factors in dealing with significant change in an organization. Business Process Management Journal, Vol. 12 No. 4, pp. 503-516.
- Christensen, Marit. (2014). Communication as a Strategic Tool in Change Processes. International Journal of Business Communication. 51. 359- 385. 10.1177/2329488414525442.
- Civelek, M., Ključnikov, A., Dobrovič, J., & Hudáková, M. (2016). A model of measurement of the quality of business environment in SME segment. Journal of international studies, 9 (2), 90-102.
- Clarke V, Braun V. (2017). Thematic analysis. J Posit Psychol. 12(3): 297–298.
- Claver, E., Llopis, J., González, M.R., Gasc, J.L. (2001). The performance of information systems through organizational culture. Information Technology & People, 14(3), 247-260.
- Collins, J. (2001). Good to Great By Jim Collins: Random House Business. Penguin Book Australia. ISBN: 9780712676090
- Corodeanu D., (2014). Management. Romanian entrepreneur behavior and performance, 2nd edition, Tehnopress Pub. Iasi County
- Creswell, J. W. (2014). Research Design: Qualitative, Quantitative and Mixed Methods Approaches (4th ed.). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage
- Creswell, J. W. (2010). Research design: Qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods approaches. (3rd ed)
- Creswell, J. W (2015). 30 essential skills for the qualitative researcher. Los Angeles, CA: SAGE.

Cummings, T., Worley, G. (2015). Organization Development & Change. SAGE

Cunha-Cruz, Joana, Peter Milgrom, Colleen E. Huebner, JoAnna Scott, Sharity Ludwig, Jeanne Dysert, Melissa Mitchell, Gary Allen, & R. Mike Shirtcliff. (2017). Care delivery and compensation system changes: A case study of organizational readiness within a large dental care practice organization in the United States. BMC Oral Health 17: 1–9.

- Dahlberg, G., P. Moss & A. Pence (2007). Beyond Quality in Early Childhood Education and Care: Languages of Evaluation. 2nd ed. Falmer Press, London.
- David J. Hughes, Allan Lee, Amy Wei Tian, Alex Newman, Alison Legood (2018). Leadership, creativity, and innovation: A critical review and practical recommendations. The Leadership Quarterly. Science Direct. Volume 29, Issue 5. Pages 549-569
- David, M. & Sutton C.D. (2004). Social Research the Basics. London: SAGE Publications.
- De Vos, A. S., Strydom, H., Fouche, C. B., & Delport, C. S. L. (2011). Research at grass roots: For the social sciences and human service professions (4th ed.). Pretoria, South Africa: Van Schaik.
- Dey, I. (1993). Qualitative Data Analysis: A User Friendly Guide for Social Science. London: Routledge. http://dx.doi.org/10.4324/9780203412497
- Dhar, V. & Sundararajan, A. (2009). Plugging in to transformation. Financial Times, Managing in a Downturn Series. Online at: http://www.ft.com/reports/managingdownturn
- Dilshad R. M., Latif M. I. (2013). Focus Group Interview as a Tool for Qualitative Research: An Analysis Pakistan. Journal of Social Sciences
- Donahue, A. K. & Tuohy, R. V. (2006). Lessons we don't learn: A study of the lessons of disasters, why we repeat them and how we can learn them. Dudley Knox Library
- Dunne M.J. (2013). Employee engagement and change management programmes: A comparative study of organizational commitment between Thai and Irish cultures. International Affairs and Global Strategy. International Affairs and Global Strategy. ISSN 2224-574X
- Druker, P.F. (2007). Management challenges for the 21st century. London: Butterworth-Heinemann Publishers.
- Dudovskiy J. (2013). Research-methodology.net, Leadership Change at Apple and its Implication on Organizational Culture. Available: http://researchmethodology.net/leadership-change-at-apple-and-its-implications-onorganizational-culture
- Dunham, R. B., Grube, J. A., Gardner, D. G., Cummings, L. L., & Pierce, J. L. (1989). The development of an attitude toward change instrument, Paper presented at Academy of Management Annual Meeting, Washington, DC.
- Dunleavy, P., & Margetts, H. (2002). Cultural barriers to e-government. London: National Audit Office

- Dobrovič Ján, Timková Veronika (2017). Examination of Factors Affecting The Implementing of Organizational Change. Journal of Competitiveness. Vol. 9, Issue 4, pp. 5 – 17. ISSN 1804-171X (Print), ISSN 1804-1728. DOI: 10.7441/joc.2017.04.01
- Donald, Mabasa & Lucia, Mabasa & Netshidzivhani, Mmbengeni. (2016). The Relationship Between Job Satisfaction And Organizational Commitment Among Academic Staff Members In a Selected Higher Education Institution. Journal of WEI Business and Economics. 5. 25-35.
- Edwards, R., & Holland, J. (2013). What is qualitative interviewing? A&C Black
- Elving, W. (2014). What we are publishing about: corporate communication in the last four volumes, Corporate Communications. An International Journal, Vol. 19 No. 2
- Elias, S. (2009). Employee commitment in times of change: Assessing the importance of attitudes towards organizational change. Journal of Management, 35, 37–55. Doi: 10.1177/0149206307308910
- Elizur, D., & Guttman, L. (1976). The structure of attitudes toward work and technological change within an organization. Administrative Science Quarterly, 21, 611–623. Doi: 10.2307/2391719
- Ely, M., Anzul, M., Friedman, T., Garner, D., & Steinmetz, A. M. (1991). Doing qualitative research: Circles within circles. London: Falmer.
- Elving, W. J. (2005). The role of communication in organizational change. Corporate Communications. An International Journal, Vol. 10 No. 2, pp. 129-138. doi: 10.1108/13563280510596943
- Fassin, Y. (2008). SMEs and the fallacy of formalizing CSR. Business Ethics: A European Review, 17(4), 364-378
- Flick, U. (2014). The SAGE Handbook of Qualitative Data Analysis. London: SAGE Publications Ltd.
- Fugate, Mel & Prussia, Greg & Kinicki, Angelo. (2012). Managing Employee Withdrawal During Organizational Change: The Role of Threat Appraisal. Journal of Management - J MANAGE. 38. 890-914. 10.1177/0149206309352881.
- Galli, BJ. (2018). Change management models: a comparative analysis and concerns IEEE Eng Manag Rev 2018; 46: 124–132.
- Ganta, V. C. & Manukonda, J. K. (2014). Leadership During Change And Uncertainty In Organizations. International Journal of Organizational Behaviour & Management Perspectives, 3(3), 1183.

- Gathai, Ngugi, Waithaka & Kamingi (2012). Analysis of Factors that Influence Implementation of Performance Contracts in State Corporations: A case of Kenya Civil Authority. International Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences
- Gebremichael, H., & Rao, B. P. (2013). Job satisfaction and organizational commitment between academic staff and supporting staff. Volaita Sodo University-Ethiopia as a Case). Far East Journal of Psychology and Business, 11, 11–32.
- Gesell. I, M. ED, CSP (2010). Leadership and Legislative conference (AIA Grassroots). Agile Leadership: Innovative Approaches to leading in Uncertain Times, Leadership and Legislative Conference. Washington, D.C
- Gibbons, J. P., Forman, S., Keogh, P., Curtin, P., Kiely, R., O'Leary, G. & O'Byrne, J. (2020). Crisis Change Management During COVID-19 in the Elective Orthopedics Hospital: Easing the Trauma Burden of Acute Hospitals. The Surgeon.
- Gomes, D. R. (2009). Organizational change and job satisfaction: The mediating role of organizational commitment. Exedra, 1, 177–195.
- Gomez, C. (2017). The Impact of Leadership Style on Performance. Whttp://ww.bizfluent.com/ttps: bizfluent.com/info-7790214
- Goodman, P., Rousseau, D., & Church, A. (2004). Organizational change that produces results: The linkage approach and executive commentary. The Academy of Management Executive, 18(3): 7-21.
- Gong, Y., Huang, J.-C., & Farh, J.-L. (2009). Employee learning orientation, transformational leadership, and employee creativity: The mediating role of employee creative self-efficacy. Academy of Management Journal
- Gough, Stephen & Scott, William. (2003). Sustainable Development and Learning: Framing the issues. Sustainable Development and Learning: Framing the Issues. 1-173. 10.4324/9780203464625
- Graamans, E., Aij, K., Vonk, A. & Have, W. (2020). Case study: examining failure in change management. Emerald Insight
- Graetz, F., Rimmer, M., Smith, A. & Lawrence, A. (2011). Leadership for Change. Managing organizational change (3rd edition). Australian Edition. Milton, Qld: John Wiley & Sons. ISBN: 978-0-730-30011-3
- Gunlu, E., Aksarayli, M. & Percin, N.S. (2010). Job Satisfaction and Organizational Commitment of Hotel Managers in Turkey. International Journal of Hospitality Management, 22, 693-717.

- Habib, M. N., & Shah, A. (2013). Business Process Reengineering: Literature Review of Approaches and Applications, Conference Paper at Proceedings of 3rd Asia-Pacific Business
- Hajar, I. (2015). The Effect of Business Strategy on Innovation and Firm Performance in the Small Industrial Sector. The International Journal Of Engineering And Science (IJES). Volume 4. Issue 2. Pages 01-09
- Halkos, George & Bousinakis, Dimitrios (2016). The effect of crisis on employees' stress and dissatisfaction. Department of Economics, University of Thessaly
- Hamzah, A., Yazid, M. F., & Shamsudin, M. F. (2020). Post covid-19: what next for real estate industrial sector in Malaysia? Journal of Postgraduate Current Business Research .1(1). Retrieved from http://abrn.asia/ojs/index.php/jpcbr/article/view/97
- Härenstam, A., M. Karlqvist, A. Rydbeck, K. Waldenström & P. Wiklund, (2004). The Significance of Organization for Healthy Work: Methods, study design, analyzing strategies and empirical results from MOA-study. ISBN: 91-7045-729
- Hargie, Owen. (2016). The Importance of Communication for Organizational Effectiveness. Retrieved: 10.17990/Axi/2016 9789726972556 015.
- Harper, S.C. (2001). The forward-focused organization. New York: American Management Association.
- Hawkins, P. (2012). Creating a coaching culture: Developing a coaching strategy for your organization. London: McGraw-Hill International
- Heckmann N., Steger T., Dowling M. (2016), Organizational Capacity for Change, Change Experience, and Change Project Performance, Journal of Business Research, Vol. 69
- Herold, D. M., Fedor, D. B., Caldwell, S. D., Liu, Y. (2008). The effects of transformational and change leadership on employees' commitment to a change: A multilevel study. Journal of Applied Psychology, 93, 346-357
- Heyden, Mariano & Fourné, Sebastian & Koene, Bas & Werkman, Renate & Ansari, Shaz. (2017). Rethinking 'Top-Down' and 'Bottom-Up' Roles of Top and Middle Managers in Organizational Change: Implications for Employee Support. Journal of Management Studies. 54. 10.1111/joms.12258.
- Hollway, W., & Jefferson, T. (2000). Doing qualitative research differently. London: Sage.
- Hornstein, H. A. (2015). The integration of project management and organizational change management is now a necessity. International Journal of Project Management, 33, 291-298. Doi: 10.1016/j.ijproman.2014.08.005

- Hoon, Cristina (2013). Meta-Synthesis of Qualitative Case Studies An Approach to Theory. SAGE
- Howard, M., Stapleton, T., Van den Bergh, N., Yoder, R. & O'Shea, D. (2016). The impact of a 'vicious cycle' on the daily functioning of a group of severely obese adults. Clinical Obesity, Vol. 6 No. 5
- Hughes, M, (2011). Do 70 percent of all organizational change initiative really fail?. Journal of change management vol. 11
- Hurduzeu, R., (2015). The impact of leadership on organizational performance. Econpapers. Issue 7, 289-294
- Hussain, Syed Talib et al. (2018). Kurt Lewin's change model: A critical review of the role of leadership and employee involvement in organizational change. Journal of Innovation & Knowledge (JIK). Elsevier
- Illing J. (2014). Thinking about research: Theoretical perspectives, ethics and scholarship.
- Imran, M. K., Rehman, C. A., Aslam, U., & Bilal, A. R. (2016). What's Organization knowledge management strategy for successful change implementation? Journal of Organizational Change Management, 29(7), null doi: 10.1108/JOCM-07-2015-0130
- Infande, Al. Dr. (2015). The 4 Methods for Conducting a Training Needs Analysis. Kindle Edition
- In Swanwick T. (2016). Understanding Medical Education: Evidence, Theory and Practice. West Sussex: Wiley-Blackwell
- Irakoze, G. (2016). ERP Implementation Success Framework For Developing Countries: Case of South African Smes. Doctoral Dissertation, University of Cape Town.
- Iverson, R. D. (1996). Employee acceptance of organizational change: The role of organizational commitment. The International Journal of Human Resource Management, 7,122–149. Doi: 10.1080/09585199600000121
- Jamadi, Muhammad Ammar (2012). Foreign labour employment in construction project. Masters thesis, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, Faculty of Civil Engineering
- Järvensivu, T., & Törnroos, J. -A. (2010). Case study research with moderate constructionism: Conceptualization and practical illustration. Industrial Marketing Management

- Jitpaibon, T., & Sharma, S. (2011). The influence of information technology utilization (ITU) on supply chain integration (SCI). International Journal of -Business Research
- J Iljins, V Skvarciany, E Gaile-Sarkane (2015). Impact of organizational culture on organizational climate during the process of change. Procedia-Social and Behavioral. Elsevier. Volume 213, Pages 944-950
- Johansson, Catrin & Heide, Mats. (2008). Speaking of change: Three communication approaches in studies of organizational change. Corporate Communications: An International Journal. 13. 288-305. 10.1108/13563280810893661.
- Johnsrud, K. (2016). The challenges of performing it security preparedness exercises in organizations. Norwegian University of Science and Technology, Trondheim.
- Jolly, S. (2017). Role of institutional entrepreneurship in the creation of regional solar PV energy markets: contrasting developments in Gujarat and West Bengal. Energy for Sustainable Development, Vol. 38 No. 3, pp. 77-92
- Jones, S. L., & Van de Ven, A. H. (2016). The changing nature of change resistance. Journal of Applied Behavioral Science, 52, 482-506. Doi: 10.1177/0021886316671409
- Jo-Yun Li, Ruoyu Sun, Weiting Tao, Yeunjae Lee (2021). Employee coping with change in the face of a pandemic: The role of transparent internal communication. Research Gate

Jaworski B.J. (2011). On managerial relevance. Journal of Marketing, Vol.75. 211-224

- Juma M, Askew I, Alaii J, et al. (2014). Cultural practices and sexual risk behaviour among adolescent orphans and non-orphans: A qualitative study on perceptions from a community in western Kenya. BMC Public Health 14(1)
- Kamudin, N. (2006). The influence of organizational commitment and Organizational culture on attitude towards organizational change (MBA Thesis). Malaysia: Open University of Malaysia.
- Kaplan, R.S. (2005). How the balanced scorecard complements the McKinsey 7-S model. Strategy & Leadership. Vol. 33 No. 3, pp. 41-46. https://doi.org/10.1108/10878570510594442
- Karabulut, A.T. (2015). Effects of innovation types on performance of manufacturing firms in Turkey. Elsevier Ltd.
- Karami, A. (2005). An exploration of the chief executive officers' perception of strategic management process. Corporate Ownership and Control

- Karanges, E., Beatson, A., Johnston, K., & Lings I. (2014). Optimizing employee engagement with internal communication: A social exchange perspective. Journal of Business Marketing Management
- Karanja, A. W. (2015). Organizational Change and Employee Performance: A Case on The Postal Corporation of Kenya. ISSN (Paper). 2222-1905 ISSN (Online) 2222-2839
- Kariuki, J. N. (2014). The Effect of Strategic Innovation on Performance of Mobile Telecommunication Firms in Kenya. Master's Thesis University of Nairobi.
- Kattenbach, R., Demerouti, E., & Nachreiner, F. (2010). Flexible working times: Effects on employees' exhaustion, work-non work conflict and job performance. Career Development International, 15(3), 279– 295.https://doi.org/10.1108/13620431011053749
- Katsaros, Kleanthis K., Athanasios N. Tsirikas, & Georgia C. Kosta. (2020). The impact of leadership on firm financial performance: The mediating role of employees' readiness to change. Leadership & Organization Development Journal 41: 333–47
- Kenny, J. (2006). Strategy and the learning organization: a maturity model for the formation of strategy. Learning Organization, Vol. 13 No. 4, pp. 353-368.
- Kepili, E. I., & Masron, T. A. (2016). Malaysia property sector. International Journal of Housing Markets and Analysis, 9(4), 468-482.
- Keupp, M. M., Palmié, M. & Gassmann, O. (2012). The Strategic Management of Innovation: A Systematic Review and Paths for Future Research. International Journal of Management Reviews, vol.14
- Khattak, M.A., Igbal, N., & Khattak, S.R. (2013). Relationship between employee involvement and organizational performance in Milieu of Pakistan. International Journal of Academic Research in Accounting, Finance and Management Sciences, 3(1), 219-230.
- Khawaja & Nadeem (2013). Training and Development Program and its Benefits to Employee and Organization: A Conceptual Study. European Journal of Business and Management. ISSN 2222-1905 (Paper) ISSN 2222-28399
- Kim, Young. (2018). Enhancing employee communication behaviors for sense making and sense giving in crisis situations: Strategic management approach for effective internal crisis communication. Journal of Communication Management. 22. 451-475. 10.1108/JCOM-03-2018-0025.
- Kok, L., Lebusa, M.H. & Joubert, P. (2014). Employee involvement in decisionmaking: A case at one university of technology in South Africa. Mediterranean Journal of Social Sciences, 5(27), 423-431

- Kothari, C.R. (2004). Research Methodology: Methods and Techniques. New Age International
- Kotler & Armstrong (2010). Principles of Marketing, 13th Edition. Pearson (Book)
- Kotter, J. (1996) Leading Change. Boston: Harvard Business School Press
- Kotter, J. (2002). The Heart of Change. Boston, MA: Harvard Business School Press
- Kotter, J. (2008). Choosing Strategies for Change. Harvard Business Review.
- Kotter, John P. (1995). Leading Change: Why Transformation Efforts Fail. Harvard Business Review
- Kortetjarvi & Murtola (2015). Arenna. Yritysviestinnän käsikirja. Edita Publishing OY. Helsinki
- Kraft, A., Sparr, J. L., Peus, C. (2018). Giving and making sense about change: The back and forth between leaders and employees. Journal of Business and Psychology. 33. 10.1007/s10869-016-9474-5.
- Králíková A. (2010). Chcete motivované zaměstnance? Jděte příkladem! HR Forum
- Kreitner, R., & Kinicki, A. (2010). Organizational behavior (9th edition). New York. NY: McGraw-Hill
- Kreitner, Robert, & Kinicki, Angelo (2007). Organizational Behavior, fifth Edition New York, NY: McGraw-Hill/Irwin.
- Kucharčíková, A. (2011). Human Capital Definitions and Approaches. Human Resources Management & Ergonomics. Volume V
- Kumari, M.K. & Kumari, V.L.P (2014). Influence of employee involvement and organizational culture on productivity: A theoretical concept. MIJBR- MITS International Journal of Business Research, 5(27), 423
- Kuper A, Reeves S, Levinson W. (2008). An introduction to reading and appraising qualitative research. US National Library of Medicine National Institutes of Health-431
- Kute, D., & Upadhyay, P. (2014). The Impact of Technological Changes on the Performance of the Employees in Commercial Printing Industry. Journal for Contemporary Research in Management, 2, 67-72.
- Koisova, E, Habanik, J., Virglerova, Z., & Rozsa, Z. (2017). SMEs Financing as an Important Factor of Business Environment in Slovak Republic Regions. Montenegrin Journal of Economics, 13 (2), 129-140

- Korauš, A., Dobrovič, J., Rajnoha, R., & Brezina, I. (2017). The safety risks related to bankcards and cyber attacks. Journal of security and sustainability issues, 6 (4), 563-574.
- Lalaine, D. C. (2018). World's housing markets poised to slow, but strong house price rises continue in Europe and parts of Asia. Retrieved from https://www.globalpropertyguide.com/press-relations
- Laforest, J. (2009). Guide to Organizing Semi-Structured Interviews with Key Informant. Institute National
- L.S. & Loiselle, C. (2008). Combining individual interviews and focus groups to enhance data richness. Journal of Advanced Nursing
- Lazarus, R. S., & Folkman, S. (1984). Stress, appraisal, and coping. New York: Springer.
- Lee, Yeunjae & Li, Jo-Yun. (2019). The value of internal communication in enhancing employees' health information disclosure intentions in the workplace. Public Relations Review. 46. 101872. 10.1016/j.pubrev.2019.101872.
- Leitch, C. M., Hill, F. M., & Harrison, R. T. (2010). The philosophy and practice of interpretivist research in entrepreneurship: Quality, validation, and trust. Organizational Research Methods, 13.
- Limerick, D., Cunnington, B. & Crowther, F. (2000). Managing the new organization (2 ed.). Warriewood: Business & Professional Publishing
- Lewis, L. (2011). Organizational change: Creating change through strategic Communication. New York, Wiley-Blackwell.
- Lewis, Laurie & Sahay, Surabhi. (2018). Change Communication. 1-15. 10.1002/9781119010722.iesc0018.
- Lewis, Laurie & Schmisseur, Amy & Stephens, Keri & Weir, Kathleen. (2006). Advice on Communicating During Organizational Change. The Content of Press Books. Journal of Business Communication - J Bus Comm. 43. 113-137. 10.1177/0021943605285355.
- Lewis, Laurie. (2006). Employee Perspectives on Implementation Communication as Predictors of Perceptions of Success and Resistance. Western Journal of Communication. 70. 23-46. 10.1080/10570310500506631.
- Lewis, Laurie & Russ, Travis. (2012). Soliciting and Using Input During Organizational Change Initiatives What Are Practitioners Doing. Management Communication Quarterly. 26. 267-294. 10.1177/0893318911431804.

- Lewin, K. (1951) Field Theory in Social Science: Selected Theoretical Papers (ed. Cartwright, D.). Harper & Row, New York.
- Linhart, S. (2011). Job one: Keeping employees happy and engaged. PR Week. Retrieved from http://www.prweekus.com/job-one-keeping- employeeshappy-and-engaged/article/207660/
- Lines, B. C., Sullivan, K. T, Smithwick, J. B. & Mischung, J. (2015). Overcoming resistance to change in engineering and construction: Change management factors for owner organizations. International Journal of Project management, 33 (5), 1170-1179. http://dx.doi. org/10.1016/j.ijproman.2015.01.008.
- Locke, E. A. (1976). The nature and causes of job satisfaction. In M. D. Dunnette (Ed.), Handbook of industrial and organizational psychology (pp. 1297-1349). Chicago: Rand McNally
- Lockwood, N. (2007) An HR Perspective: Change Management. https://www.shrm.org/hr-today/trends-and-forecasting/research-andsurveys/documents/change%20management%20survey%20report.pdf
- Lucidchart Content Team (2019). What Makes Lewin's Change Theory Ideal or Businesses. Lucidchart.com blog
- Lumley, EJ & Coetzee, Melinde & Tladinyane, Rebecca & Ferreira, Nadia. (2011). Exploring the job satisfaction and organizational commitment of employees in the information technology environment. Southern African Business Review. 15.
- Luo, Y., & Jiang, H. (2014). Effective public relations leadership in organizational: A study of multinationals in Mainland China. Journal of Public Relations Research
- Malaysian Construction Research Journal (MCRJ) (2018). International Conference on Applied Science and Technology (ICAST). The Malaysian Construction Research Journal is indexed in Scopus Elsevier
- Malik, Muhammad & Samina, Nawab & Naeem, Basharat & Danish, Rizwan. (2010). Job Satisfaction and Organizational Commitment of University Teachers in Public Sector of Pakistan. International Journal of Business and Management. 5. 10.5539/ijbm.v5n6p17.
- Malopinsky, L.V., & Osman, G. (2006). Dimensions of organizational change. In J.A. Pershing (Ed.), Handbook of human performance technology. (3rd ed.). San Francisco: Pfeiffer, 262-286.
- Manage, H. (2007). 7-S framework: Manage methods 7S Management Journal. Manage Website: http:// www. 12manage.com

- Manju.S & Dr. Suresh B.H (2011). Training Design Interventions and Implications for the productivity Effectiveness, Synergy, 9(1) pp 52-68
- Mankiw, N.G. (2010). Macroeconomics. 7th edition. New York Worth Publishers
- Mazzei (2014). Modeling Internal Communications in the Financial Service Sector. European Journal of Marketing
- McClellan, John G. (2011). Reconsidering Communication and the Discursive Politics of Organizational Change. Journal of Change Management.
- McMillan, E. (2004). Complexity, organizations and change. London: Routledge Taylor & Francis Group.
- McNamara, C. (2011). Organizational change and development (Managing change). Free Management Library
- Meaney, M., & Pung, C. (2008). McKinsey global results: Creating organizational transformations. McKinsey Quarterly: 1–7.
- Melanie, B. & B. Tim (2012). Change communication: The impact on satisfaction with alternative workplace strategies. Facilities, 30(3/4): 135 151. Available: https://doi.org/10.1108/02632771211202842.
- Men (2014). Why leadership matters to internal communication: Linking transformational leadership, symmetrical communication, and employee outcomes. Journal of Public Relations Research, 26 (3) (2014),pp. 256-279, 10.1080/1062726X.2014.908719
- Men & D. Stacks, (2014). The effects of authentic leadership on strategic internal communication and employee-organization relationships. Journal of Public Relations Research, 26 (4) (2014), pp. 301-324.
- Merriam, Sharan B. (2009). Qualitative research: A guide to design and implementation (2nd ed.). San Francisco, CA. Jossey-Bass.
- Messinger, B., & Havely, J. (2013). How to improve your odds for successful change management. Communication World, pp. 19-22.
- Miles, M. B., & Huberman, A. M. (1994). Qualitative Data Analysis: An Expanded Sourcebook. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.

Mindtool (2019). Making Organizational Change Happen Effectively. Emeraldworks

Mohammed, F. & Eleswed, M. (2013). Job Satisfaction and Organizational Commitment: A Correlational Study in Bahrain. International Journal of Business, Humanities and Technology, 3, 43-53.

- Mondy, R.W., & Martocchio, J.J. (2016). Human Resource Management (14th edition). Harlow, England: Pearson Education Limited.
- Moran, J.W.; Brightman, B.K. (2011). Leading organizational change. Career Development International Career Dev. Int. 6 (2), 111–118
- Mourfield, R. (2014). Organizational Change: A Guide to Bringing Everyone on Board. University of Indiana
- Mulika. (2010). The Impact of Teamwork on Employee Performance in Strategic Management and the Performance Improvement Department of Abu Dhabi Police, UAE.
- Murthy, C. (2007). Change management. Mumbai, IND: Global Media.
- Myers, M.D. (2013). Qualitative Research in Business & Management. 2nd Edition. Sage Publications, London.
- Nachmias & Nachmias, (2014). Research Methods in the Social Sciences Eighth Edition. ISBN-13: 978-1429233002
- Nafei, W. A. (2014). Assessing employee attitudes towards organizational commitment and change: The case of King Faisal hospital in Al-Taif Governorate, kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Journal of Management and Sustainability, 4, 204– 219. Doi: 10.5539/jms.v4n1p204
- Naveed, A. N. I. (2014). Impact of training and development on the employee performance: A case study from different banking sectors of North Punjab. Arabian Journal of Business and Management Review. Nigerian Chapter. 2(4): 1-5.
- Newell, Graeme & Steglick, Mark (2015). Assessing the Importance of Property Development Risk Factors. Pacific Rim Property Research Journal.12.0.1080/14445921.2006.11104197.
- Nick F., (2019). Property investment: gearing and the equity rate of return, Journal of Property Investment & Finance, 37(3), 323-328.
- Nickols, (2010). Four Change Management Strategies. Distance Consulting LLC
- Nonås Kathe (2005). Vision versus reality in organizational change PhD Dissertation, Göteborg University Sweden
- Nowell LS, Norris JM, White DE, Moules NJ. (2017). Thematic analysis: striving to meet the trustworthiness criteria. Int J Qual Methods. 16(1): 160940691773384
- Nwaeke, L.I. & Obiekwe, O. (2017). Impact of manpower training and development on organizational productivity and performance: A theoretical review. European Journal of Business and Management, 9(4), 154-159.

- Obiekwe, O. (2018). Human capital development and organizational survival: A theoretical review. International Journal of Management and Sustainability, 7(4), 194-203.
- Ogbonna, Emmanuel Okechukwu & Harris, Lloyd C. (2003). Innovative organizational structures and performance: A case study of structural transformation to "groovy community centers". Journal of Organizational Change Management 16 (5) pp. 512-533. 10.1108/09534810310494919
- Oreg, S. (2006). Personality, context, and resistance to organizational change. European Journal of Work and Organizational Psychology, Vol. 15
- Oreg, S., M. Vakola, & A. Armenakis. (2011). Change Recipients' Reactions to Organizational Change: A 60-Year Review of Quantitative Studies. The Journal of Applied Behavioral Science. 461-524
- Osif, Bonnie A. (2010). Communication. Library Leadership & Management. Texas Digital Library. Vol 24, No.1
- Palmer, I., Dunford, R., Buchanan, D. A. (2017). Managing Organizational Change: A Multiple Perspective Approach. New York, NY: Mc Graw Hill Education.
- Palmer MA, Reidy CA, Nilsson C, Flo<sup>°</sup>rke M, Alcamo J, Lake PS, Bond N (2008). Climate change and the world's river basins: anticipating management options. Frontiers in Ecology and the Environment 6:81–89
- Panaite N., (2011). Management of human resource performance. Sedcom Libris Pub. Bucharest
- Patton, Michael Quinn (2015). Qualitative research & evaluation methods: Integrating theory and practices. SAGE Publications
- Pearce, J., & Robinson, R. (2007). Strategic management: formulation, implementation control. 10th ed. London: Irwin Publishers.
- Pettigrew, A. M., Woodman, R.W., Cameron, K. S. (2001). Studying organizational change and development: Challenges for future research. Academy of Management Journal
- Pickard, A. J. (2013). Research methods in information (2nd ed.). Chicago, IL: Neal-Schuman.
- Plewes, J., (2014). Change fatigue: The hidden sleeper in change failure. Available from https://www.morganmckinley.com
- Popa I., Burdus E., (2014). Management methodologies. Pro Universitaria Pub. Bucharest

- Pope C, Mays N, Popay J. (2007). Synthesizing qualitative and quantitative health evidence: a guide to methods. Buckingham: Open University Press.
- Preda, G. (2013). The Influence of Entrepreneurial Orientation and Market-Based Organizational Learning on The Firm's Strategic Innovation Capability. Management & Marketing Challenges for the Knowledge Society, vol.8
- Prediscan, M., Bradutanu, D., & Roiban, R. N., (2013). Forces that enhance or reduce employee resistance to change. Annals of Faculty of Economics productivity Effectiveness, Synergy. Vol. 1.2013, 1, p. 1606-1612
- Property Insight team (2019). Challenge in Malaysia Construction Business. Property Insight News
- Rafferty, A. E., & Restubog, S. L. D. (2017). Why do employees' perceptions of their organizations change history matter? The role of change appraisals. Human Resource Management.
- Rafferty, Alannah & Griffin, Mark. (2006). Perceptions of Organizational Change: A Stress and Coping Perspective. The Journal of applied psychology. 91. 1154-62. 10.1037/0021-9010.91.5.1154.
- Rajnoha, R., tefko, R., Merková, M., & Dobrovič, J. (2016). Business ntelligence as a key information and knowledge tool for strategic business performance management. E+M Ekonomie a management, 19(1), 183-203.
- Rawlins, B. L. (2008). Measuring the relationship between organizational transparency and employee trust. Public Relations Journal, 2(2): 1-21.
- Razali, Muhammad & Adnan, Yasmin. (2015). Sustainable property development by Malaysian property companies. Property Management. 33. 451-477. 10.1108/PM-02-2014-0008.
- RHB Research Institute (2020). Covid-19 MCO: Unfit Property Developments Will Fall. MIEA Institute
- Rieley, J.B., Clarkson, I. (2001). The impact of change on performance. J. Chang.Manag. 2 (2), 160–172.
- Ritchie, Lisa M. Puchalski, & Sharon E. Straus. (2019). Assessing Organizational Readiness for Change: Comment on Development and Content Validation of a Transcultural Instrument to Assess Organizational Readiness for Knowledge Translation in Healthcare Organizations. The OR4KT
- Robbins, S.P., & Judge, T.A (2015). Organizational Behavior, 16th Edition: The Essentials Book. Pearson
- Robbins, S.P., & Judge, T.A. (2013). Organizational Behaviors (15th edition). Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education Limited.

- Santhidran, S., Chandran, V. G. R.. & Borromeo, J. (2013). Enabling organizational change - leadership, commitment to change and the mediating role of change readiness. Journal of Business Economics and Management International Journal of Health Policy and Management 8: 55.
- Saunders, M., Lewis, P. & Thornhill, A. (2012). Research methods for business students. 6th Edition United Kingdom: Financial Times Prentice Hall
- Savin-Baden, M. & Major, C. H. (2013). Qualitative research: The essential guide to theory and practice. Routledge: New York.
- Schein EH (2010). Organizational Culture and Leadership, 4th Edition. San Francisco, CA: Wiley.
- Schein, E. (1992). Organizational Culture and Leadership (2nd ed). San Francisco: Jossey-Bass.
- Schermerhorn, J., Hunt, j. and Osborn, R. (2014). Organizational Behavior, John Wiley and Sone. New York
- Schurink, W., Fouche, C., & De Vos, A. (2013). Qualitative data analysis and interpretation. In A. De Vos, H. Strydom, C. Fouche, & C. Delport (Eds.). Research at grass roots (4th ed., pp. 397–423). Pretoria: Van Schaik
- Schouteten, R., & Van Der Vleuten, T. (2013). Organizational change and job satisfaction among voluntary and paid workers in a Dutch voluntary organization (pp. 1–33). The Netherlands: Radboud University.
- Scott Snell, George W. Bohlander (2012). Managing Human Resources. Business & Economics. ISBN 1305258355, 978130525835
- Seeger, Matthew & Ulmer, Robert & Novak, Julie & Sellnow, Timothy (2005). Post-Crisis Discourse and Organizational Change, Failure and Renewal. Journal of Organizational Change Management. 18. 78-95. 10.1108/09534810510579869.
- Seidel, J., & Kelle, U. (1995). Different functions of coding in the analysis of textual data. In U. Kelle (Ed.), Computer-dided qualitative data analysis: Theory, methods, and practice. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.

Senior, B. (2002). Organizational Change, 2nd Edition (London: Prentice Hall).

Setia Haruman website. www.setiaharuman.com

Shah, N., Irani, Z. & Sharif, A.M. (2016). Big data in an HR context: exploring organizational change readiness, employee attitudes and behaviors. Journal of Business Research, Vol. 70.

- Shaw M. (2018). Unplanned Change and Crisis Management. In: Farazmand A. (eds) Global Encyclopedia of Public Administration, Public Policy, and Governance. Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-20928-9\_748
- Shivappa, R. (2015). Change Management Concept, Process, Principles and Skills. Retrieved on November 1, 2016, from http://www.slideshare.net/shivapparamakrishna/change -manage
- Shockley, K. M., & Allen, T. D. (2007). When flexibility helps: Another look at the availability of flexible work arrangements and work-family conflict. Journal of Vocational Behavior, 71, 479–493. Doi: 10.1016/j.jvb.2007.08.006
- Sidikova, M. (2011). Family conflict. Journal of Vocational Behavior, 71(3), 479–49A case of Cargotec Shared Service Centre. Bachelor Thesis. Turku University of Applied Sciences
- Simons, Helen (2009). Case study research in practice. Los Angeles, CA: Sage Publications.
- Skvarciany, Viktorija & Iljins, Juris & Gaile-Sarkane, Elina. (2015). Impact Of Organizational Culture on Organizational Climate during the Process of Change. Research Gate
- Smollan, R. (2011). Engaging with Resistance to Change. University of Auckland Business Review
- Smythe, William E. & Murray, Maureen J. (2000). Owning the story: Ethical considerations in narrative research. Journal Ethics & Behavior. Taylor and Francis Online. 10(4): 311-336
- Sofijanova, E. & Zabijakin-Chatleska, V. (2013). Employee involvement and organizational performance: Evidence from the manufacturing sector in Republic of Macedonia. Traka Journal of Science, 11(1), 31-36
- Spreitzer, G. M., Cameron, L., & Garrett, L. (2017). Alternative work arrangements: Two images of the new world of work. The Annual Review of Organizational Psychology and Organizational Behavior. Research Gates
- Su Ling, C., Stefanie, A., Muhamad, S., & Le Sze, L. (2017). Imbalances in The Property Market. BNM Quarterly Bulletin (internet)
- Suma, S., & Lesha, J. (2013). Job satisfaction and organizational commitment: The case of Shkodra municipality. European Scientific Journal, 9, 41–51.

Stake, Robert E. (2006). Multiple case study analysis. New York, NY: Guilford.

Star Business News (2018). Construction players face uncertain prospects. News portal

- Starr, J. (2011). The coaching manual: The definitive guide to the process, principles and skills of personal coaching. Upper Saddle River, NJ: FT Press
- Stringer, (2010). Contributor network, how employee's performance is affected by Change Management. Ghana.
- Stolovitch, H. D., & Keeps, E. J. (1992). What is human performance technology? In H. D. (pp. 3-13). San Francisco: Jossey-Bass.
- Stouten, J, Rousseau, DM, de Cremer, D. (2018). Successful organizational change: integrating the management practice and scholarly literatures. Acad Manag Annal 2018; 12: 752–788.
- Syed, Azeem. (2010). Job Satisfaction and Organizational Commitment among Employees in the Sultanate of Oman. Psychology. 01. 295-299. 10.4236/psych.2010.14038.
- Szamosi, L.T., & Duxbury, L. (2002). Development of a measure to assess organizational change. Journal of Organizational Change Management Telecommunication Firms in Kenya. Master's Thesis University of Nairobi
- Szczepańska-Woszczyna, Katarzyna. (2014). The importance of organizational culture for innovation in the company. Forum Scientiae Oeconomia. Volume 2 (2014). Pp. 27-39.
- Tat, H. H., Pei-Ni, T., & Rasli, A. M. (2012). Job satisfaction and Organizational commitment in a Malaysian public university's library. International Journal of Management Sciences and Business Research, 7,1-7.
- Taylor J, Sims J, Haines TP. 2012. The influence of protection, palliation and costs on mobility optimization of residents in nursing homes: a thematic analysis of discourse. Int J Nurs Stud. 49(11): 1364–1374
- Tesch, R. (1990). Qualitative research: Analysis types and software tools. Falmer. New York.
- Thanh, N.C., & Thanh, T.T.L. (2015). The interconnection between Interpretivist paradigm and qualitative methods in Education. American Journal of Educational Science, 1(2), 24-27
- Thoroughgood, Christian & Sawyer, Katina & Padilla, Art & Lunsford, Laura. (2018). Destructive Leadership: A Critique of Leader-Centric Perspectives and Toward a More Holistic Definition. Journal of Business Ethics. 151. 10.1007/s10551-016-3257-9.
- Tidd, J. & Bessant, J. (2014). Strategic Innovation Management, West Suusex: John.Wiley & Sons.

- Top, M., Akdere, M., & Tarcan, M. (2015). Examining transformational leadership, job satisfaction, organizational commitment, and organizational trust in Turkish Hospitals: Public servants versus private sector employees. The International Journal of Human Resource Management, 26, 1259–1282. Doi: 10.1080/09585192.2014.939987
- Top, M., & Gider, O. (2013). Interaction of organizational commitment and job satisfaction of nurses and medical secretaries in Turkey. The International Journal of Human Resource Management, 24, 667–683. Doi: 10.1080/ 09585192.2012.680600
- Udeh, S. N., & Igwe, N. N. (2013). Effects of Mergers and Acquisitions on Return on Capital Employed and Dividend Per Share Indices of Companies in Nigeria. International Journal of Business Administration, 4, 51-72. https://doi.org/10.5430/ijba.v4n5p51
- Ulich, Clara & Iacoviello, Vincenzo & Lorenzi-Cioldi, Fabio. (2018). Solving the crisis: When agency is the preferred leadership for implementing change. The Leadership Quarterly. 29. 295-308. .1016/j.leaqua.2017.05.003
- Ulrich, D. (2013). Human Resource Champions: The Next Agenda for Adding Value and Delivering Results. Boston: Harvard Business School Press
- Uluskan M., McCreery J.K., Rothenberg L (2018). Impact of quality management practices on change readiness due to new quality implementations. International Journal of Lean Six Sigma
- Understanding Change Management Processes (2019). Michigan State University Online
- Vakola, M., & Nikolaou, I. (2005). Attitudes towards organizational change: What is the role of employees' stress and commitment? Employee Relations, 27,160– 174. Doi: 10.1108/01425450510572685
- Verčič, Ana Tkalac & Nina Pološki Vokić (2017). Engaging Employees through Internal Communication. Public relations review 43, no. 5
- Veronese, G., Pepe, A. & Afana, A. (2016). Conceptualizing the well being of helpers living and working in war-like conditions: a mixed-method approach. International Social Work. Vol. 59 No. 6, pp. 938-952

Verywellmind.com (2019). Kurt Lewin and Modern Social Psychology. News

Visagie, C. M., & Steyn, C. (2011). Organizational commitment and responses to planned organizational change: An exploratory study. Southern African Business Review, 15, 98–121.

- Walid, A.S. & Zubair, H. (2016). Impact of effective teamwork on employee performance. International Journal of Accounting, Business and Management, 4(1): 77-86.
- Wang, Gang & Oh, In-Sue & Courtright, Stephen & Colbert, Amy. (2011). Transformational Leadership and Performance Across Criteria and Levels: A Meta-Analytic Review of 25 Years of Research. Group & Organization Management. 36. 223-270. 10.1177/1059601111401017.
- Watling CJ, Lingard L. (2012). Grounded theory in medical education research: AMEE guide no. 70. Med Teach. 34(10): 850–861.
- Warrilow, Stephen (2010). Strategies for Managing Change, Lynton Glenthorne Ltd.
- Wasim, A. & Imran, A. (2010). The Role of Leadership in Organizational Change. Relating the successful organizational change to visionary and innovative leadership. Faculty of Engineering And Sustainable Development.
- Weick, Karl & Sutcliffe, Kathleen & Obstfeld, David. (2005). Organizing and the Process of Sense Making. Organization Science. 16. 409-421. 10.1287/orsc.1050.0133.
- Woodside, A.G., & Baxter, R. (2013). Achieving accuracy generalization to contexts and complexity in theories of business-to-business decision processes. Industrial Marketing Management.
- Worley, C., Williams, T.D., & Lawler, E.E. III (2014). The agility factor: Building adaptable organizations for superior performance San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.
- Wright, P., & McCarthy, J. (2010). Experience-centered design: designers, users, and communities in dialogue. Morgan & Claypool Publishers.
- Wuestman, D. & J. Casey. (2015). Lean leadership: Sustaining long-term process change. Strategic Finance (February): 15-16, 61.
- Xue Ying, T. (2019). Malaysia property market to see 'further stagnation' in 2019 Rahim & Co. Retrieved from https://www.theedgemarkets.com/article/ property market further research. Stagnation-rahim-co.
- Yang, X., (2014). Resistance to Organizational Change and the Value of Communication: the case of Volvo Cars Human Resources Department. Master Thesis in SHRM and Labour Relations, University of Gothenburg.
- Yazan, B. (2015). Three approaches to case study methods in education: Yin, Merriam, and Stake. The Qualitative Report, 20, 134–152.

- Yilmaz, D. & Kilicoglu, G. (2013) Resistance to Change and Ways of Reducing Resistance in Educational Organizations. European Journal of Research on Education, 1, 14-21
- Yin, R. K. (2002). Case study research: Design and methods. Thousand Oaks. CA: SAGE Publications.
- Yin, R. K. (2003). Case study research: Design and methods (3rd ed.). Los Angeles. CA: SAGE Publications.
- Yin, R. K. (2009). Case study research: Design and methods (4 ed.). Los Angeles. CA: SAGE Publications.
- Yin, R. K. (2014). Case study research: Design and methods. Los Angeles. CA: SAGE Publications.
- Yin, R. K. (2017). Case study research: Design and methods (6th ed.). Los Angeles. CA: SAGE Publications
- Yirdaw, A. (2016). Quality of Education in Private Higher Institutions in Ethiopia: The Role of Governance. SAGE Open, 6(1), 1-12
- Yousef, D. A, (2017). Organizational commitment: a mediator of the relationships of leadership behavior with job satisfaction and performance in a non-western country. Journal of Managerial Psychology
- Yousef, D. A. (2000a). Organizational commitment and job satisfaction as Predictors of attitudes toward organizational change in a non-western setting. Personnel Review, 29, 567–592. Doi: 10.1108/00483480010296401
- Yousef, D. A. (2000b). Organizational commitment as a mediator of the relationship between Islamic work ethic and attitudes toward organizational change. Human Relations, 53, 513–537. Doi: 10.1177/0018726700534003
- Yu, M. C. (2009). Employees' perception of organizational change: the mediating effects of stress management strategies. Public Personnel Management
- Yue, Cen April & Men, Linjuan & Ferguson, Mary Ann. (2019). Bridging transformational leadership, transparent communication, and employee openness to change: The mediating role of trust. Public Relations Review. 45. 10.1016/j.pubrev.2019.04.012.
- Zafar, F., Iqbal, Y., Azad, M.T. & Afsar, R.J. (2014). Human Resource Role in Change Management during Cross Border Mergers. IOSR Journal of Business and Management, 16, 54-61. https://doi.org/10.9790/487X-16145461.
- Zaid, M, Kiani, S., Rad, A. & Zainon, N. (2017). Are green offices better than conventional? Measuring operational energy consumption and carbon impact of green office in Malaysia. Facilities, 35(11/12), 622-637.

- Zhao, L., Rashid, H. (2010). The mediating role of work-leisure conflict on job stress and retention of it professionals. Academy of Information and Management Sciences Journal, 13, (2).
- Zull Kepili, E. I., & Masron, T. A. (2016). Malaysia Property Sector. International Journal of Housing Markets and Analysis. 9(4), 468–482.

